PoORT OF OsSWEGDO

AUTHIORITY

Annual Meeting of the Board of Directors of the Port of Oswego Authority

Wednesday, March 26, 2025
4:30 PM Meeting

AGENDA
Call to Order

Motion AM 2501 — Approval of Prompt Payment Policy Pursuant to Section 2880 of the
Public Authorities Law (Exhibit AM-a).

Motion AM 2502 — Review and approve the adoption of Guidelines for Awarding of
Procurement Contracts Pursuant to Section 2879 of the Public Authorities Law (Exhibit
AM-b).

Motion AM 2503 - Review and approve the Port of Oswego Authority Property
Disposition Policy Pursuant to Section 2896 of the Public Authorities Law (Exhibit AM-

c).

Motion AM 2504 — Review and approve the Port of Oswego Authority Investment Policy
Pursuant to Section 2925 of the Public Authorities Law (Exhibit AM-d).

Motion AM 2505 — Review and re-adopt the Port of Oswego Authority Mission
Statement and KPIs (Exhibit AM-e).

Motion AM 2506 - Review and adopt the new Port of Oswego Authority Conflict of
Interest Policy (Exhibit AM-f).

Appointments and Elections
e Appointment of Legal Counsel for FY 2025-2026 (Exhibit AM-g)
e Election of Board Officers for FY 2025-2026 (Exhibit AM-h)
o Chairman
o Vice-Chairman
o Secretary/Treasurer

Adjourn

MISSION STATEMENT

The mission of the Port of Oswego Autharity is to serve as an economic catalyst in the Central New York Development Council District
Region by providing diversified and efficient transportation services and conducting operations in a manner that promotes regional
growth and development while being mindful of our responsibility to serve as a steward of the environment.



Exhibit A
Annual Meeting



STATEMENT OF RULES AND REGULATIONS
PROMULGATED BY
PORT OF OSWEGO AUTHORITY
DETAILING THE PORT’S PROMPT PAYMENT POLICY
PURSUANT TO SECTION 2880 OF THE PUBLIC AUTHORITIES LAW

I Statutory Authority: Chapter 183 of the Laws of 1987, approved June 29, 1987, effective
January 1, 1988, adding a new section twenty-eight eighty to the Public Authorities Law.

II. Port Application: Subdivision 1(a) of Section 2880 of the Public Authorities Law defines a
“Corporation”...as..."every public authority and public benefit corporation a majority of the
governing board members of which are either appointed by the govemor or serve as
members by virtue of their service as an officer of a state department, division, agency,
board or bureau, or combination thereof.” The Port of Oswego Authority is a public
corporation created pursuant to the Public Authorities Law and the members of its governing
board are all appointed by the governor for specified terms.

IIl. Types of Contracts: In order to perform its statutory functions as a Port Authority pursuant
to its enabling legislation, the Port of Oswego Authority has required, from time to time, to
authorize the execution of certain contracts with certain firms, organizations and individuals
which include, but are not necessarily limited to, the following:

A. Construction and rehabilitation contracts for the construction and maintenance of
Port facilities and other projects required for the creation, maintenance and operation
of the Port of Oswego Authority district.

B. Purchase contracts for the purchase of and/or leasing of office fumiture and field
equipment including, but not limited to, motor vehicles, construction equipment,
office furnishings and office equipment.

C. Service contracts for maintenance and operation of field and office equipment.

D. Consulting contracts for specific services not rendered by salaried full- or part-time
employees including, but not limited to, legal, financial, and public relations
services.

IV. Procedure for Requesting Payment: The following procedures shall be followed by a
contractor in requesting payment under a contract:

A. Construction and Rehabilitation Contracts: Unless progress payments are specified
in the contract, contractor shall submit a payment voucher to the Port upon

completion of all work required to be completed under the contract with a
certification of completion included therein. If the contract provides for progress
payments as the work progresses, contractor shall submit a duly certified and
approved estimate of the work performed during the preceding payment period in



VL

accordance with the schedule specified in the contract. If the contract provides for a
retention by the Port Board of a specified percentage of the amount of each estimate
to insure proper performance of the contract, such percentage shall be retained until
final completion and acceptance of all work covered by the contract.

B. Purchase Contracts: Upon the delivery to the Port of all items purchased or leased
under a purchase or lease contract, contractor shall deliver to the Port an invoice with
a certification that all items covered by the invoice and delivered to the Port are in
conformity with the specifications of the contract and that the prices set forth in the
invoice for each item purchased or leased are in conformity with the bid or quoted
price as set forth in the contract.

C. Setvice Contracts: Upon completion of the service rendered under a service
contract, the contractor shall submit a voucher with a certification that the service
rendered including any materials or supplies furnished have been completed and or
furnished in conformity with the specifications contained in the contract and that the
charges included in the invoice are those charges which the Port agreed to pay for the
services rendered pursuant to the contract.

D. Consulting contracts: Upon completion of services rendered under a consulting
contract, the contractor shall submit a voucher with a certification that the consulting
services rendered have been performed in conformity with the contract requirements
and that the charges included in the invoice are those charges which the Port agreed
to pay for the consultant services rendered pursuant to the contract.

Schedule for Prompt Payment under Contract: All Port checks are required to be
countersigned by the State Comptroller. Upon receipt of vouchers containing appropriate
certifications, the Port will take appropriate steps to authenticate and approve vouchers for
payment and submit checks to the State Comptroller for countersignature within a time
frame designed to permit payment within the thirty (30) calendar days after receipt of
invoice.

Declaration Regarding Payment of Interest: Port will pay interest on the balance due on
any invoice which has not been paid within thirty (30) days of the receipt thereof at the rate
specified in Section 1096 of the Tax Law pursuant to Section 2880, Subdivision 7(c) of the
Public Authorities Law unless (1) the payment has been delayed due to process time by the
Department of Audit and Control, or (2) the payment is delayed by facts and conditions, as
set forth in paragraph VIII herein, which, in the opinion of the Port Board, reasonably
Justify extension of the date by which contract payment must be made in order for the Port
not to become liable for interest payments in accordance with subdivision 7 of Section
2880 of the Public Authorities Law.

Funding Sources for Port to Pay Interest: The Port’s annual maintenance and operation
budget is funded primarily from assessments levied against downstream paying
beneficiaries. The payment of any interest penalties required pursuant to Section 2880 of



the Public Authorities Law would be charged against the contingency fund in said general
fund budget.

VIIL Fact and Conditions Justifying Extension for Payment: The following is a list of facts
and conditions which in the opinion of the Port Board would reasonably justify an
extension of the date by which contract payment must be made in order for the Port not to
become liable for interest payments in accordance with Section 2880 (7) of the Public
Authorities Law:

A. When in accordance with specific statutory or contractual provisions, payments must
be preceded by an inspection period or by an audit to determine the resources applied
or used by a contractor in fulfilling the terms of the contract.

B. A proper invoice must be examined by the federal government prior to payment.

C. Such date by which contract payment must be made is modified in accordance with
subdivision eight of Section 2880 of the Public Authorities Law, to wit: The Port
“shall have fifteen calendar days after receipt of an invoice...at its designated payment
office to notify the contractor of (a) defects in the delivered goods, property or
services, (b) defects in the invoice, (c) suspected improprieties of any kind; and the
existence of such defects or improprieties shall prevent the commencement of the
time period specified in subdivision seven” of Section 2880 of the Public Authorities
Law. If the Port “fails to notify a contractor within fifteen calendar days of receiving
the invoice, the number of days allowed for payment of the corrected proper invoice
will be reduced by the number of days between the fifteenth day and the day that
notification was transmitted to the contractor.” If the Port, “in such situations, fails to
provide reasonable grounds for its contention that a defect or impropriety exists, the
date by which contract payment must be made in order for the” ...Port... “to become
liable for interest payment shall be calculated from the date of the invoice.”



Exhibit B
Annual Meeting



RESOLUTION
ADOPTING GUIDELINES FOR THE AWARDING OF PROCUREMENT CONTRACTS
PURSUANT TO SECTION 2879
OF THE PUBLIC AUTHORITIES LAW

WHEREAS, Section 2879 of the Public Authorities Law was enacted for the purpose of
establishing guidelines governing each public authority and every public benefit corporation whose
members are appointed by the Governor in reference to contracts for personal service as set forth in
said statute; and

WHEREAS, the Port of Oswego Authority is a public benefit corporation organized and
operating pursuant to the provisions of Section 1350 and seq. of the Public Authorities Law of the
State of New York, all of whose members are appointed by the Governor of the State of New York,
and thus the said Authority is within the requirements of Section 2879 of the Public Authorities Law;
and

WHEREAS, said Section 2879 of the Public Authorities Law defines personal service
contracts to mean the written agreement to provide a service including but not limited to a legal,
accounting, management consulting, investment banking, planning, training, statistical, research,
public relations, architectural, engineering, surveying or other personal services of a consulting,
professional or technical nature for a fee, commission or other compensation by a person or persons
who are not providing such service as officers or employees of a state agency or public corporation;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Port of Oswego Authority does hereby
establish the following guidelines which detail the Authority’s operative policy and instructions
regarding the use, awarding, monitoring and reporting of procurement contracts,

GUIDELINES FOR PROCUREMENT CONTRACTS

1. TITLE. The following comprehensive guidelines detailing the operative policy and
instructions of the Port of Oswego Authority and its subsidiary corporations herein collectively
referred to as (the “Authority”) regarding the use, awarding, monitoring, and reporting of
procurement contracts, shall be known as “Guidelines for Procurement Contracts.” They shall be
referred to herein as the “Guidelines”.

2. DEFINITIONS.

A. Procurement Contract - any written agreement for the acquisition of goods or
services of any kind, in the actual or estimated amount of $5,000.00 or more.

B. Contract for Goods and Services - any written agreement to provide a good or
service (other than those hereinafter defined as personal services), pertaining to:
vehicle or building operation and maintenance, office equipment and supplies, fuel
and consumable liquids, printing, promotional materials, or any other similar item or
items.

C. Contract for Personal Services - any written agreement to provide a service,
including but not limited to legal, accounting, management consulting, investing,
banking, planning, training, statistical, research, public relations, architectural,

1



engineering, surveying, or other personal services of a consulting, professional, or
technical nature, for a fee, commission or other compensation by a person or persons
not providing such services as an officer or employee of a state agency or public
benefit corporation.

D. Minority Business Enterprise -

I. Any business enterprise, including a sole proprietorship, partnership or
corporation that is:

a. An enterprise in which at least fifty-one percent of the ownership of
which is controlled by one or more minority group members or, in the
case of a publicly owned business, at least fifty-one percent of the
common stock or other voting interests of which is owned by one or
more minority group members;

b. An enterprise in which the minority ownership is real, substantial
and continuing;

¢. An enterprise in which the minority ownership has and exercises
the authority independently to control the day-to-day business
decisions of the enterprise; and

d. An enterprise authorized to do business in New York State,
independently owned and operated, and not dominant in its field.

II. For the purpose of these Guidelines, a minority group member means a
United States citizen or permanent resident alien who can demonstrate
membership in one of the following groups:

a. Black persons having origins in any of the Black African racial
groups not of Hispanic origin;

b. Hispanic persons of Mexican, Puerto Rican, Dominican, Cuban,
Central or South American of either Indian or Hispanic origin,
regardless of race;

¢. Asian and Pacific Islander persons having origins in any of the Far
East, Southeast Asia, the Indian sub-continent or the Pacific Islands; or

d. Native American persons having origins in any of the original
peoples of North America.

IIL. For the purpose of these Guidelines, a women-owned business enterprise
means a business enterprise, including a sole proprietorship, partnership or
corporation which is:

a. At least fifty-one percent owned by one or more United States
citizens or permanent resident aliens who are women or, in the case of

2



a publicly-owned business, at least fifty-one percent of the common
stock or other voting interests of which is owned by a United States
citizen or citizens or a permanent resident alien or aliens who are
women,

b. An enterprise in which the ownership interest of women is real,
substantial and continuing;

¢. An enterprise in which the women ownership has and exercises the
authority to control independently the day-to-day business decisions of
the enterprise; and

d. An enterprise authorized to do business in New York State,
independently owned and operated, and not dominant in its field.

3. INTENT. It is the intent of the Authority that to the fullest extent practical, and except as
otherwise provided for herein, the selection of procurement contractors shall be from the widest
available selection of responsible procurement contractors for a particular good or service.

4, RESPONSIBILITY FOR PROCUREMENT CONTRACTS. The Executive Director
of the Authority, or their duly appointed designee, has the overall day-to-day responsibility and
oversight regarding the awarding and monitoring of procurement contracts. Personal service
contractors shall be utilized in those areas where the Authority Board determines that such services
may not reasonably be obtained by staff members of the Authority or its subsidiary corporations, or
by officers or employees of another state agency or public corporation. In making such
determination, facts such as timing, costs, qualifications, or the nature of the services to be rendered
shall be taken into consideration.

5. REQUIREMENTS REGARDING THE SELECTION OF PROCUREMENT CONTRACTORS.
A. Personal Services

I. The selection of personal services contractors shall be on a competitive
basis except that the Board may waive competition if it is in the best interest
of the Authority for the Board to do so. The standard of “Best Interest of the
Authority” may, but need not be, based upon one or more of the following
criteria for the selection of personal services contractors:

a. Confidentiality,

b. Specialized expertise or unusual qualifications; or services
obtainable from one source only,

c. Historical relationship with the Authority or its subsidiary
corporations, the continuation of which is in its or their best
interest,

d. Specialized knowledge, -

e. Geographical proximity to the Authority,

f. Lack of responsible competition, in the sole opinion of the
Authority, to perform the desired services,

g. Nature, magnitude, or complexity of services required,

3



h. Lack of Authority resources, support staff, specialized facilities or
equipment,

i. Lower cost,

Short-term or infrequent need for services, or

Selection which is necessary or convenient to the operations of the

Authority or any of its subsidiary corporations,

e e

II. Any contract involving services to be rendered over a period in excess of
one year, shall require the approval of the Board by resolution, and an annual
review of the contract by the Board.

III. A personal services contract shall require approval of the Board by
resolution, when the amount thereof exceeds $10,000.

IV. Legal services need not be awarded on a competitive basis.

V. A personal services contract over $2,500.00 which is to be awarded on a
non-competitive basis shall require board approval. Reasons for a non-
competitive award should be stated in the approving motion or resolution.

VI. Personal services contracts of less than $2,500.00 need not be awarded on
a competitive basis nor approved by the Board unless for a period in excess of
one year.

B. Goods and Other Services

I. Selection of contractors for goods and services other than personal services
shall be made only on a competitive basis except as herein otherwise set forth.
The level of competition and authorization shall depend upon the estimated or
actual value of the good or service as follows:

Estimated or Actual Required Level Highest Authorization
Level Value of Competition Level Required
I Up to $500 Not Required Supervisor of
Develop. & Maint.
II $500 - 2,500 3 Quotations Executive Director
I11 $2,500- 25,000 3 Written Quotations Executive Director
IV $25,000 andup  Public Bids Board Resolution



II. Competition may be waived:

a. On an emergency basis when the safety of life or property is
involved. A written explanation of the nature of the emergency must
accompany the purchase order/contract.

b. When only one source is available. A written statement must
accompany the purchase order/contract, explaining the need for sole
source acquisition.

The level of approval required for such waivers of competition as set
forth in subsections 2(a) and (b) herein shall be either General
Manager or Executive Director within Levels II - IV above, and the
Board of Directors for Level V.

¢. When public procurement arrangements are use, such as:
1. City, County or regional supply contracts
ii. Federal G.S.A. contracts
iii. State O.G.S. contracts

d. Under a warranty, when the Authority may be required to obtain
service from a manufacturer-designated entity.

e. When the best interest of the Authority is clearly saved, as
determined by the Executive Director or the Board.

III. Any contract for goods or services other than personal services, awarded
for a period in excess of one year, shall require the approval of the Board by
resolution, and an annual review of the contract by the Board.

6. MINORITY AND WOMEN-OWNED BUSINESS ENTERPRISES (“MBE/WBE™)

A. Minority and women-owned businesses shall be given full opportunity to compete
in all types of procurements contracts.

B. Janitorial services have been identified as an area set aside for MBE/WRBE bids,
where practicable.

C. In any procurement where an MBE submits a low bid which is equivalent to a bid
from a non-MBE/WBE firm, the MBE/WBE firm, if determined possible, will be
given preference.

7. PROCEDURES FOR COMPETITIVE SELECTION - PERSONAL SERVICES.
The procedures for competitive selection of personal services contractors when such method of
selection is considered to be in the best interest of the Authority, are as follows:

A. The Authority shall prepare a written statement containing a description of the

5



services, the reasons why they are required, and the required estimated schedule or
duration of the services.

B. A request for proposals (“RFP”) shall whenever practicable and desirable be sent
to three or as many more firms as are in the best interest of the Authority to assure
competition, including any MBE firms selected to receive the RFP pursuant to
authority MBE programs, unless there are less than three qualified firms or unless
competition is waived as provided in the Guidelines.

C. The RFP shall describe the services to be performed, any competition dates or
time requirements, MBE requirements, if applicable, and the criteria to be utilized by
the Authority in evaluating proposals, and shall contain a requirement for a cost
proposal and the date, time, and place when proposals must be received.

D. The Authority may select one or more proposers with which to negotiate after
evaluation of the proposals received. The award shall be made to the proposer or
proposers whose proposal(s) will be the most advantageous to the Authority, price,
qualifications and other factors considered, using such evaluation criteria as the basis
for the decision.

E. Architectural, Engineering and Survey Contracts.

I. In the procurement of such architectural, engineering and surveying
services as the Authority determines should be received through the RFP
process, the Authority shall evaluate current statements of qualifications and
performance data. If desired, the Authority may conduct discussions with
three or more professional firms regarding anticipated design concepts and
proposed methods of approach to the assignment.

II. The Authority shall then comply with the provisions of Subparagraphs
“A”, “B”, and “C” of Section 7 of these Guidelines,

III. The Authority shall negotiate a contract with the highest qualified profes-
sional firm for architectural and/or engineering services and/or surveying
services at compensation which the Authority determines in writing to be

fair and reasonable. In making this decision, the Authority shall take into
account the estimated value of the services to be rendered, the scope,
complexity, and professional nature thereof. Should the Authority be unable to
negotiate a satisfactory contract with the professional firm considered to be
the most qualified, at a fee it determines to be fair and reasonable,
negotiations with the professional firm shall formally be terminated. The
Authority shall then undertake negotiations with the second most qualified
professional firm. Failing accord with the second most qualified professional
firm, the Authority shall then undertake negotiations with the third most
professional firm. Should the Authority be unable to negotiate a satisfactory
contract with any of the selected professional firms in order of their
competence and qualification, it shall continue negotiations in accordance
with this subparagraph until an agreement is reached.



IV. The provisions of this subparagraph “3” shall apply only to engineering
and/or architectural services and/or surveying services contracts in excess of
twenty-five thousand dollars ($25,000.00).

V. Contracts for engineering, architectural or surveying services involving
lesser amounts may be entered into pursuant to the provisions of this section
or any other applicable provisions of the Guidelines.

8. PROVISIONS TO BE CONTAINED IN ALL PROCUREMENT CONTRACTS.

A. Procurement contracts shall set forth the nature, quantity, if applicable, and
monitoring of work performed, the use of corporate supplies and facilities, the use of
corporate personnel, and other provisions considered to be in the best interest of the
Authority. All requirements of law shall be incorporated by reference in the
Authority’s Procurement contracts. Procurement contracts shall be awarded only to
persons or firms deemed responsive to the Authority’s Procurement documents as
well as capable and responsible.

The following types of provisions shall be contained in all procurement contracts,
except that any of the provisions listed which are inapplicable or unnecessary because
of the nature of duration of the services or goods to be delivered, the location or
locations where they are to be performed or the type of compensation being paid
therefor need not be included. Any other terms deemed applicable may be added.

I.  Description of services
II. Compensation
III. Time for performance or date of completion
IV. Liability of contractor or consultant; indemnification of Authority
V. Reports of contractor or consultant
VL. Ownership of plans, drawings, or other products of the performance of
the services (professional services)
VII. No assignments or subcontracts without the express written consent of
the Authority
VIII. Maintenance of records, accounts
IX. Right of Authority to inspect and/or audit books and records of
contractor or consultant (professional services)
X. Insurance requirements
XI. Termination
XII. Monitoring of the performance of services
XIII.  Use of Authority supplies, facilities or property
X1V. Use of Authority personnel
XV. All provisions required to be included in Authority contracts by Federal,
State, or local laws, ordinances, codes, rules or regulations, and
XVI. Involvement of former officers or employees.

B. Contractor shall have the following responsibilities:

I. To perform the contract in accordance with its terms;



I1. To perform services required under a contract competently, efficiently, in
a timely and first-class manner, at a reasonable cost and in a manner which is
acceptable to the Authority, or to deliver goods or supplies in first-class
condition, to the proper location, on a timely basis, and in a manner which is
acceptable to the Authority; and

II. To cooperate fully with Authority personnel who are directing,
monitoring, or supervising the delivery of services or goods, or who are
assisting in the delivery thereof.

9. INVOLVEMENT OF FORMER OFFICERS OR EMPLOYEES. No procurement
contracts shall be entered into with former officers or employees of the Authority except by a
resolution adopted by a majority of the Members of the Board upon showing that such contract is in
the best interest of the Authority, and then only to the extent permitted by Section 73 of the Public
Officers Law, the Authority Code of Ethical Conduct concerning outside activities, and other
applicable provisions of the law,

10. PUBLICLY AVAILABLE REPORTS. A publicly available report shall be prepared
on not less than an annual basis, summarizing procurement activity by the Authority, including a
listing of all contracts entered into, the process used to select such contractors, and the status of
existing procurement contracts, For the purposes of such report, only contracts in the actual or
estimated amount of $5,000.00 or more and for at least one year in duration need be included.

11. ANNUAL REPORT ON PROCUREMENT CONTRACTS.

A. The Authority shall annually prepare and approve a report on procurement con-
tracts which shall include the Guidelines, an explanation of the Guidelines, and any
amendiments thereto since the last annual report. Such report on procurement
contracts may be a part of any other annual report that the corporation is required to
make. For the purposes of this report, only procurement contracts in the actual or
estimated amount of $5,000.00 need be included.

B. Such report shall be submitted annually to the Division of the Budget and copies
thereof to the Department of Audit and Control, the Senate Finance Committee and
Assembly Ways and Means Committee.

C. Copies of the annual report are to be made available to the public upon reasonable
request therefor.



12. THIRD PARTY RIGHTS; VALIDITY OF CONTRACTS

A. These Guidelines are intended for the guidance of officers and employees of the
Authority only, and nothing contained herein is intended or shall be construed to
confer upon any person, firm or corporation any right, remedy, claim or benefit
under, or by reason, of any requirement or provision hereof.

B. Nothing contained in the Guidelines shall be deemed to alter, affect the validity of,
modify the terms of or impair any contract or agreement made or entered into in
violation of, or without compliance with, the provisions of the Guidelines.

13. MISCELLANEOUS.

A. Where applicable Federal, State, or local laws, ordinances, codes, rules, or
regulations containing requirements which are in conflict with or impose greater
obligations upon the Authority than these Guidelines, then such requirements shall
take precedence over those contained herein.

B. Any specific provision of the Guidelines may be waived by the Chairman,
Executive Director or President of the Authority or its subsidiary corporations, or
such individuals as they may designate, but only under extraordinary circumstances.
Any waivers of the Guidelines herein due to extraordinary circumstances shall be
reported to the Port of Oswego Authority Board no later than the first monthly
meeting following the waiver to allow the Board to certify the extraordinary
circumstances are present and necessary.

C. The Authority shall not be precluded from adopting additional requirements
relating to the matters covered by these Guidelines.

14, EFFECTIVE DATE. The Guidelines shall be effective as of the first day of April 1990,
revised March 20, 2023.



Exhibit C
Annual Meeting



Port of Oswego Authority
Property Disposition Policy
Pursuant to Sections 2896 & 2897 of the Public Authorities Law

In keeping with the policy of maintaining the highest standards of conduct and ethics and to
operate in the most accountable and open manner, the Port of Oswego Authority (the
“Authority”) will, at all times, maintain adequate inventory controls and accountability systems
for all Property (as such term is defined below) under its control. Furthermore, the Authority
may Dispose (as such term is defined below) of Property in compliance with any applicable Law,
Rule or Regulation (as such capitalized terms are defined below).

Failure to follow the provisions of this Property Disposition Policy will result in disciplinary
action including possible termination of employment or dismissal from one’s board or agent
duties if warranted. Definitions (as utilized in the Port of Oswego Authority’s Property
Disposition Policy):

Contracting Officer shall mean the duly appointed individual serving as either the Executive
Director or Supervisor of Development and Maintenance.

Dispose, Disposed, Disposal or Disposition shall mean the transfer of title or any other beneficial
interest in personal(moveable) or real property in accordance with Section 2897 of the New York
Public Authorities Law.

Law, Rule or Regulation: Any duly enacted statute, or ordinance or any rule or regulation
' promulgated pursuant to any federal, state or local statute or ordinance.

Property shall mean (a) personal property in excess of Five Thousand Dollars ($5,000.00) in
value; (b) real property; and (c) any other interest in such property, to the extent that such interest
may be conveyed to another person for any purpose, excluding an interest securing a loan or
other financial obligation of another party.

Operative Policy:
Inventory Controls and Accountability Systems

The Contracting Officer of the Authority shall be responsible for the Authority’s compliance
with this Property Disposition Policy and the supervision and control of all Property Disposed of
by the Authority. In addition, the Contracting Officer shall have the responsibility to ensure the
Authority operates in compliance with Article 9, Title 5-A of the New York Public Authorities
Law, including creating and maintaining adequate inventory controls and accountability systems
for all Property under the control of the Authority and periodically inventorying such property to
determine which, if any, property should be Disposed of by the Authority. The Contracting
Officer shall recommend to the Board of Directors any Property he/she deems suitable for
Disposal.

Disposition of Property

Unless otherwise authorized by this Policy and approved by the Board of Directors, the
Authority shall Dispose of Property for not less than fair market value (“FMV™) by sale,



exchange, or transfer, for cash, credit, or other property, with or without warranty, and upon such
terms and conditions as the Contracting Officer deems proper. Provided, however, that no
disposition of real property, any interest in real property, or any other Property which because of
its unique nature is not subject to fair market pricing shall be made unless an appraisal of the
value of such Property has been made by an independent appraiser and included in the record of
the transaction.

Unless otherwise authorized by this Policy, prior to disposing of Property or entering into a
contract for the Disposal of Property, the Authority shall publicly advertise for bids for such
Disposal or contract for Disposal. The advertisement for bids shall be made at such a time prior
to the Disposal or contract for Disposal, through such methods, and on such terms and conditions
as shall permit full and free competition consistent with the value and nature of the Property.
Such advertisement shall include the date, time and place the bids will be publicly disclosed by
the Authority. The Authority shall award the contract with reasonable promptness to the most
responsible bidder whose bid, conforming to the invitation for bids, is most advantageous to New
York State (the “State™), price and other factors considered; provided, however, that Authority
reserves the right to reject all such bids when it is in the public interest to do so.

The Authority may Dispose of Property or enter into contracts for the disposal of Property via
negotiation or public auction without regard to the two (2) paragraphs immediately above, but
subject to obtaining such competition as is feasible under the circumstances, if:

l: The personal property involved is of a nature and quantity which, if Disposed of under
the first two (2) paragraphs of this section, would adversely affect the state or local market for
such Property, and the estimated FMV of such Property and other satisfactory terms of the
Disposal can be obtained by negotiation;

2 The FMV of the Property does not exceed Fifteen Thousand Dollars ($15,000.00);

3. Bid prices after advertising therefore are not reasonable, either as to all or some part of
the Property, or have not been independently arrived at in open competition;

4. The Disposal is to the State or any political subdivision of the State and the estimated
FMV of the Property and other satisfactory terms of the Disposal are obtained by negotiation;

5 The Disposal is for an amount less than the estimated FMV of the Property, the terms of
such Disposal are obtained by public auction or negotiation, the Disposal of the Property is
intended to further the public health, safety or welfare or an economic development interest of
the State or a political subdivision of the State, including but not limited to, the prevention or
remediation of a substantial threat to public health or safety, the creation or retention of a
substantial number of job opportunities, or the creation or retention of a substantial source of
revenues, and the purpose and terms of the Disposal are documented in writing and approved by
resolution of the Board of Directors; or,

6. Such Disposal or related action is otherwise authorized by law. The Authority shall file
an explanatory statement with the New York State Comptroller, the Director of the Division of
Budget of the State of New York, the Commissioner of General Services of the State of New
York and the Leadership of the New York State Legislature not less than ninety (90) days before
the Authority Disposes of the Property if the Property is personal property in excess of Fifteen



Thousand Dollars ($15,000.00), or real property that has a FMV in excess of One Hundred
Thousand Dollars ($100,000.00). When the Property is Disposed of by lease (or exchange), then
the Authority shall file an explanatory statement when the Property is real property leased for a
term of five (5) years or less with an estimated fair annual rent exceeding One Hundred
Thousand Dollars ($100,000.00) in any given year, real property leased for a term greater than
five (5) years with an estimated fair annual rent exceeding One Hundred Thousand Dollars
($100,000.00) for the entire lease term; or, any real property or real and related personal
property Disposed by exchange, regardless of value, or any property any part of the
consideration for which is real property.

Reporting Requirements
Annual Report

The Corporation shall publish, at least annually, an Annual Report (the “Annual Report™) listing
all Property consisting of real property of the Authority. In addition, the Annual Report shall
include a list and full description of all Property consisting of real and personal property
Disposed of during such period covered by the Annual Report. The Annual Report shall include
the price received by the Corporation for the Property, in addition to the name of the purchaser
for all such Property sold by the Corporation during such period covered by the Annual Report.

The Corporation shall deliver copies of the Annual Report to the New York State Comptroller,
the Director of the Division of Budget of the State of New York, the Commissioner of General
Services of the State of New York and the New York State Legislature, and to the extent
practicable, post such Annual Report on its website.

Property Disposition Policy Consistent with Article 9, Title 5-A of the Public Authorities Law,
the Authority shall review and approve this Property Disposition Policy annually by resolution of
the Board. On or before June 30 of each year, the Corporation shall file with the New York State
Comptroller a copy of its Property Disposition Policy, including the name of the Contracting
Officer appointed by the Authority. Upon such filing with the Comptroller, the Authority shall
post its Property Disposition Policy on its website.

Revised 3/9/2023



Exhibit D
Annual Meeting



PORT OF OSWEGO AUTHORITY
INVESTMENT POLICY
PURSUANT TO SECTION 2925 OF THE PUBLIC AUTHORITIES LAW

L SCOPE

This investment policy applies to all moneys and other financial resources available for
investment on its own behalf or on behalf of any other entity or individual.

IL. OBJECTIVES
The primary objectives of the Authority's investment activities are, in priority order:

¢ o conform with all applicable federal, state and legal requirements (legal)
» to adequately safeguard principal (safety)
* to provide sufficient liquidity to meet all operating requirements (liquidity)

e to obtain a reasonable rate of return (yield)
III. DELEGATION OF AUTHORITY

The governing Board’s responsibility for administration of the investment is delegated to the
Executive Director, who shall establish an adequate internal control structure to provide a
satisfactory level of accountability based upon a database or records incorporating description
and amounts of investments, transaction dates and other relevant information, and regulate the
activities of subordinate employees.

IV.  PRUDENCE

All participants in the investment process shall seek to act responsibly as custodians of the public
trust and shall avoid any fransaction that might impair public confidence in the Port of Oswego
Authority to govern effectively.

Investments shall be made with judgment and care, under circumstances then prevailing, which
persons of prudence, discretion, and intelligence exercise in the management of their own affairs,
not for speculation, but for investment, considering the safety of the principal as well as the
probable income to be derived.

All participants involved in the investment process shall refrain from personal business activity
that could conflict with proper execution of the investment program, or which could impair their
ability to make impartial investment decisions.

V. DIVERSIFICATION

It is the policy of the Port of Oswego Authority to diversify its deposits and investments by
financial institution, by investment instrument and by maturity scheduling.

Rev. 3/9/2023



VI. INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Executive Director is responsible for establishing and maintaining an internal control
structure to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance that deposits and investments are
safeguarded against loss from unauthorized use or disposition, that transactions are executed in
accordance with management’s authorization, recorded properly and are managed in compliance
with applicable laws and regulations.

VII. DESIGNATION OF DEPOSITORIES

The banks and trust companies authorized for the deposit of moneys up to the following
maximum amounts are:

Depository Name Maximum Amount
Key Bank -

Pathfinder Bank FDIC insured limit
NBT Bank FDIC insured limit

VIII. COLLATERALIZING OF DEPOSITS

In accordance with the provisions of the Public Authorities Law Section 2925, all deposits with
the Port of Oswego Authority, including certificates of deposit and special time deposits, in
excess of the amount insured under the provisions of the Federal Deposit Insurance Act shall be
secured;

1. By pledge of “eligible securities” with aggregate “market value” or provided by Public
Authorities Law Section 2925,

2. By an eligible “irrevocable letter of credit” issued by a qualified bank other than the bank
with the deposits in favor of the Authority for a term not to exceed ninety (90) days with an
aggregate value equal to 140% of the aggregate amount of deposits and the agreed upon
interest, if any. A qualified bank is one whose commercial paper and other unsecured short-
term debt obligations are rated in one of the three highest rating categories by at least one
nationally recognized statistical rating organization or by a bank that is in compliance with
applicable federal minimum risk-based capital requirements.

3. By an eligible surety bond payable to the Authority for an amount at least equal to 100% of
the aggregate amount of deposits and the agreed upon interest, if any, executed by an
insurance company authorized to do business in New York State, whose claims-paying
ability is rated in the highest rating category by at least two nationally recognized statistical
rating organizations.

IX. PERMITTED INVESTMENTS

As Authorized by Public Authorities Law Section 2925, the Port of Oswego Authority authorizes
the Executive Director to invest moneys not required for immediate expenditure for terms not to
exceed its projected cash flow needs in the following types of investments:

Rev. 3/9/2023



Special time deposit accounts

Certificates of deposit

Money market deposit accounts

Obligations of the United States of America

* Obligations guaranteed by agencies of the United States of America where the payment of
principal and interest are guaranteed by the United States of America

¢ Obligations of the State of New York

All investment obligations shall be payable or redeemable at the option of the Port of Oswego
Authority within such times as the proceeds will be needed to meet expenditures for purposes for
which moneys were provided and, in the case of obligations purchased for the proceeds of bonds
or notes, shall be payable or redeemable at the option of the Port of Oswego Authority within
two (2) years of the date of purchase.

X. AUTHORIZED FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS AND DEALERS

The Port of Oswego Authority shall maintain a list of financial institutions and dealers approved
for investment purposes and establish appropriate limits to the amount of investments which can
be made with each financial institution or dealer, All financial institutions with which the local
government conducts business must be credit worthy. Banks shall provide their most recent
Consolidated Report of Condition (Call Report) at the request of the Authority or the Authority
can access them at www.FFIEC.gov. Security dealers not affiliated with a bank shall be required
to be classified as reporting dealers affiliated with the New York Federal Reserve Bank, as
primary dealers. The Executive Director is responsible for evaluating the financial position and
maintaining a listing of proposed depositories, trading partners and custodians. Such listing shall
be evaluated at least annually,

Rev. 3/9/2023



Exhibit E
Annual Meeting



PORT OF OSWEG

AUTHDORITY -

MISSION STATEMENT
and
KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

The mission of the Port of Oswego Authority is to serve as an economic catalyst in the
Central New York Development Council District Region by providing diversified and
efficient transportation services and conducting operations in a manner that promotes
regional and international growth and development while being mindful of our
responsibility to serve as a steward of the environment.

Adopted — September 28, 2011
Revised — March 8, 2017

Key Performance Indicators

1; Increase in revenue tons shipped by water through the Port of Oswego.

g Increase in labor hours.

3. Increase in activity of intermodal rail transportation for Central New York.
4. Maximize marina activity through increases in slip rental, transient

movement, and fuel sales.

3. Be a center of excellence in efficiency and safety.
6. Maximize Port revenues and contribute a positive economic impact for New
York State.

The Port of Oswego Authority shall actively participate in Article 15-A and encourage
the participation by minority group members and women with respect to state contracts.



Exhibit F
Annual Meeting



PORT OF OsSWEGO

AUTHORITY ——

CONFLICT OF INTEREST POLICY
PURSUANT TO SECTION 2824(7) OF THE PUBLIC AUTHORITIES LAW

Conflicts of Interest - Definition

A conflict of interest is a situation in which the financial, familial, or personal
interests of a director or employee come into actual or perceived conflict with their
duties and responsibilities with the Port of Oswego Authority (“POA”).

Perceived conflicts of interest are situations where there is the appearance that a
board member and/or employee can personally benefit from actions or decisions
made in their official capacity, or where a board member or employee may be
influenced to act in a manner that does not represent the best interests of the
authority. The perception of a conflict may occur if circumstances would suggest
to a reasonable person that a board member may have a conflict. The appearance
of a conflict and an actual conflict should be treated in the same manner for the
purposes of this Policy.

Board members and employees must conduct themselves at all times in a manner
that avoids any appearance that they can be improperly or unduly influenced, that
they could be affected by the position of or relationship with any other party, or
that they are acting in violation of their public trust. While it is not possible to
describe or anticipate all the circumstances that might involve a conflict of interest,
a conflict of interest typically arises whenever a director or employee has or will
have:

" A financial or personal interest in any person, firm, corporation or
association which has or will have a transaction, agreement or any other
arrangement in which the authority participates.

* The ability to use their position, confidential information or the assets of
the POA, to their personal advantage.

Page 1 of 3



* Solicited or accepted a gift of any amount under circumstances in which
it could reasonably be inferred that the gift was intended to influence
them, or could reasonably be expected to influence them, in the
performance of their official duties or was intended as a reward for any
action on their part.

* Any other circumstance that may or appear to make it difficult for the
board member or employee to exercise independent judgment and
properly exercise their official duties.

Outside Employment of Authority’s Employees:

No employee may engage in outside employment if such employment interferes
with their ability to properly exercise their official duties with the authority.

PROCEDURES
Duty to Disclose:

All material facts related to the conflicts of interest (including the nature of the
interest and information about the conflicting transaction) shall be disclosed in
good faith and in writing to the Governance Committee and/or the Ethics Officer.
Such written disclosure shall be made part of the official record of the proceedings
of the authority.

Determining Whether a Conflict of Interest Exists:

The Governance Committee and/or Ethics Officer shall advise the individual who
appears to have a conflict of interest how to proceed. The Governance Committee
and/or Ethics Officer should seek guidance from counsel or New York State
agencies, such as the Authorities Budget Office, State Inspector General or the
NYS Commission on Ethics and Lobbying in Government when dealing with cases
where they are unsure of what to do,

Recusal and Abstention:

No board member or employee may participate in any decision or take any official
action with respect to any matter requiring the exercise of discretion, including

Page 2 of 3



discussing the matter and voting, when they know or have reason to know that the
action could confer a direct or indirect financial or material benefit on themself, a
relative, or any organization in which there is an interest. Board members and
employees must recuse themselves from deliberations, votes, or internal discussion
on matters relating to any organization, entity or individual where their impartiality
in the deliberation or vote might be reasonably questioned, and are prohibited from
attempting to influence other board members or employees in the deliberation and
voting on the matter.

Records of Conflicts of Interest:

The minutes of the authority’s meetings during which a perceived or actual conflict
of interest is disclosed or discussed shall reflect the name of the interested person,
the nature of the conflict, and a description of how the conflict was resolved.

Reporting of Violations:

Board members and employees should promptly report any violations of this
policy to their supervisor, or to the public authority’s ethics officer, general
counsel or human resources representative in accordance with the authority’s
Whistleblower Policy and Procedures.

Penalties:

Any director or employee that fails to comply with this policy may be penalized in
the manner provided for in law, rules or regulations.

Page 3 of 3



Exhibit G
Annual Meeting



BY-LAWS OF THE PORT OF OSWEGO AUTHORITY

Oswego, New York

ARTICLE V1

Subsection 6.07 General Counsel. The General Counsel shall be the chief
legal officer of the POA and the Staff Officers, and shall: (a) advise and
render opinions to the Directors and Staff Officers of the Authority as to all
legal matters relating to the administration , operations and financing of the
Authotity, and as to the laws governing the programs of the Authority; (b)
draft, examine and approve as to legal compliance all forms, contracts or
other documents necessary for all phases of the Authority’s work or
purposes; (¢) coordinate with and assist bond counsel in the preparation of
all documents related to the sale of the Authority’s obligations and the
investment of proceeds; (d) exercise such other powers and perform such
other duties as the Board of Directors and the Executive Director may
determine.



Exhibit H
Annual Meeting



BY-L.AWS OF THE PORT OF OSWEGO AUTHORITY
Oswego, New York

ARTICLE V Section 5.01 - Officers

Subsection 5.01-1 Duties of the Chair. The Chair shall (1) preside at all
meetings of the POA, (2) communicate to the Executive Director and, where
appropriate, executive staff, the policies of the POA established by the
Board, (3) be responsible for advancing the mission and promoting to the
general public the objectives of the POA and (4) perform other duties as
requested by the Board. The Chair shall appoint the Standing Committees of
the POA. The Chair will be responsible for the direct oversight of the
Executive Director,

Subsection 5.01-2 Duties of the Vice-Chair. The Vice-Chair shall perform
the duties of the Chair in the event the office of Chair is vacant, or in the
event that the Chair is unable to perform such duties by reason of illness,
disabifity or absence. The Vice-Chair may be requested by the Chair and/or
the Board to assume additional responsibilities, as needed.

Subsection 5.01-3 Duties of the Secretary/Treasurer. The
Secretary/Treasurer shall (1) sign board resolutions and other board
documents requiring such signature; (2) maintain original and copies of
official POA Board documents (e.g. minutes of meetings, agreements,
contracts, etc.); (3) oversee the proper and legal mailing of notices to the
POA Directors and the Executive Committee; (4) ensure that minutes of
meetings are correct and distributed to metnbers in a timely manner, (5) be
an official co-signatory of documents requiring two signatures (e.g., checks),
(6) assist the Executive Director in the management, review, and
administration of finances and fiscal matters of the organization; (7) be a
member of the Audit Committee.




PORT OF OsSWEGO

AL THDORISEY

Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors of the Port of Oswego Authority

Wednesday, March 26, 2025
Immediately after the Annual Meeting of the Board of Directors
of the Port of Oswego Authority

1. Call to Order

2. Motion 03-26-2501: To move to executive session for discussion of annual personnel issues.

3. Motion 03-26-2502: To resume the regular monthly meeting.

4. Motion 03-26-2503: To approve the Minutes of the 02-24-2025 regular monthly meeting
(Exhibit A).

5. Administrative Operational Report: (Exhibit B)

6. Administrative Financial Reports: (A) Primary and (B) Subsidiary

Motion 03-26-2504: To accept February’s Primary Financial Reports and Subsidiary
Financial Reports.

A. Primary Financial Reports: (Exhibit C-1)
-Cash Position
-Balance Sheet
-Profit & Loss Statement

B. Subsidiary Financial Reports: (Exhibit C-2)
-Monthly Bills
-Accounts Payable
-Accounts Receivable
-Grants Receivable Summary
-Loan Summary
-Schedule of Assets
-Sales Report

7. Chairman’s Report

Th

MISSION STATEMENT

e mission of the Port of Oswego Authority is to serve as an economic catalyst In the Central New York Development Council District
Region by providing diversified and efficient transportation services and conducting operations in a manner that promotes regional growth

and development while being mindful of our responsibility to serve as a steward of the environment.



8. Committee Reports — no Committee Meetings in February
a. Executive Committee
b. Audit and Finance Committee

Motion 03-26-2505: Motion to authorize the Chairperson of the Audit Committee
to execute the Engagement Letter from Bowers CPA’s and Advisors.

c. Governance Committee
d. Planning and Development Committee

9. OIld Business

10. New Business
Motion 03-26-2506: Motion to authorize the Interim Executive Director to execute the

Utility Bill Integration Services Agreement with New York Energy Manager. (Exhibit D)

Review of Authorities Budget Office (ABO) audit of required website content — Policy
Guidance 22-01: Posting and Maintaining Reports on Public Authority Websites.

(Exhibit E)
11. AD HOC MOTIONS REQUIRED AS A RESULT OF MEETING BUSINESS:

Motion 03-26-250 : To
Motion 03-26-250 : To

12. Motion 03-26-250 : To adjourn the regular monthly meeting.

Next Regular Monthly Board Meeting is tentatively scheduled for
Monday, April 21, 2025 @ 4:30pm

MISSION STATEMENT

The mission of the Port of Oswego Authority is to serve as an economic catalyst in the Central New York Development Council District
Region by providing diversified and efficient transportation services and conducting operations in a manner that promotes regional growth
and development while being mindful of our respensibllity to serve as a steward of the environment.



Exhibit A



PORT OF OSWEGO AUTHORITY - UNAPPROVED
Regular Monthly Meeting
Monday, February 24, 2025

CALL TO ORDER: Mrs. Cosemento called the meeting to order at approximately 4:30 PM.

PRESENT: Constance Cosemento - Vice Chairperson, Stan Delia, Dr. John Kares Smith, Kathleen
Macey, Diane Zeller, and Thomas Schneider - Interim Executive Director.

ALSO PRESENT: Pat McMahon - Supervisor of Development & Maintenance, Kim Natoli - Port
Employee, and Debbie Godden - Accounting Manager.

PRESENT ON ZOOM: Francis Enwright - Chairperson

APPROVAL OF MINUTES

Motion 02-24-2501:

A motion was made by Mr. Delia to approve the minutes of the January 13, 2025 regular monthly
meeting at 4:31 PM. Motion was seconded by Ms. Zeller. Motion passed. 5-Aye, 0-Nay, 1-Abstain.

ADMINISTRATIVE OPERATIONAL REPORT
Mr. Schneider, Interim Executive Director, presented the Administrative Operational Report to the
Board and addressed any questions or comments at 4:31 PM.
Report Topics:
Monthly operations update — January 2025
Update on projects:
e Operations Monthly Report — included; this report originates from the Port’s Scale’s
Office, that shows the volume of trucks, railcars, and vessels within any given month;
comparing it to the prior year there is about double coming in and 2/3 of the amount of
last year going out. The Port’s three (3) commodities are:
v" potash — which is going out by truck load
v" grain — was still coming in in January from farmers, from their silos as they sold
to the Port’s customer, filling the silo and the Port is loading it out on railcars
v" aluminum - the various commodity brokers who ship aluminum to the Port and
then ship to the local aluminum plant
e Weather Conditions — the current weather conditions are causing slower operations for
ILA members, overtime in snow removal, clearing and de-icing the railroad tracks and
switches, and silo issues. Adverse weather conditions are challenging to the business
model and will show in the financial statements in January and February, however, are
not a long-term concern.
e Still Watch Vessel — abandoned vessel still sits at the Port’s dock. The United States
Coast Guard (USCG) from Alexandria Bay did respond but did not board the vessel.
They did note that the vessel is a potential environmental hazard; the USCG will follow
up with the Port. The Port was going to inquire with local law enforcement, however
due to the past two weeks of winter weather, that was not done. Unfortunately, from
the USCG’s perspective, they are looking at this as a private, pleasure vessel and it is

Page 1 of 4



moored in our marina and therefore it is a private business. The Port will have to seek
an insurance provider that has salvage provisions for abandoned vessels.

e Aluminum - ingots that are coming into the Port that cannot go directly to the local
manufacturing plant end up being rerouted to the Port; these are the larger ingots/slabs.
Also, the Port was informed that we would be receiving the ingots by rail from
Kentucky. There has been a lot of activity in the handling and storage of aluminum.
The Port is receiving more requests to sort by alloy and size which creates added
complexity to the storage and will need to be reflected in the pricing and contracts.

o Port Infrastructure Development Program (PIDP)/Maritime Administration (MARAD)
— The PIDP is a discretionary grant program administered by the Maritime
Administration. There was an initial meeting the week prior for the warehouse
modernization project.

e H. Lee White Marine Museum — continues their efforts on the LT-5, they are attempting
to get grants and reconfigure grants. They are looking for a dry-dock solution locally
for the vessel.

e Meetings — Operation Oswego County, Oswego City Department of Public Works, New
York State Parks & Canal System, CenterState CEQ; there was a cooperative, neighbor-
type meeting with Fort Ontario State Historic Site. Pat McMahon has been
participating in all the meetings.

DISCUSSIONS ON TOPICS FROM ADMINISTRATIVE OPERATIONAL REPORT

Mr. McMahon explained the challenges of the weather on the silo operations. When temperatures get
colder, components are freezing at the top of the silo. Several components of the silo are operated by
air actuators. There is an air compressor on the lower portion that sends all the air to the actuators;
once the computer of the silo begins, if a component is frozen, it will not proceed to each step. The
system will not function properly. The frozen component must then be found and thawed out. Ms.
Zeller and Mr. Delia inquired if there was some type of heat system that could be installed. Mr.
Schneider stated that weather conditions should be contemplated for future discussions of contracts,
pricing, and operations of the Agricultural Center.

Dr. Kares Smith inquired more about the USCG visit to the Port. Mr. Schneider stated that we wanted
their recommendations on the Still Watch vessel, and that they did respond because of the
environmental and navigational hazards along the Oswego River and the New York State canal
system. The Port will follow-up with USCG.

Mr. Delia inquired about if the Marine Museum receiving grant funds is contingent on defueling the
LT-5. Mr. Schneider stated that it would be part of the award of the grant to defuel the vessel; he
would like the transfer of title sooner rather than later and working cooperatively with the Museum
would be in the best interest.

Mr. McMahon described a situation where the Port assisted the Oswego City DPW with securing a
light pole on the East Seneca Street bridge for safety reasons. Also, the City inquired about using the
Fitzgibbons site as a disposal site for the excess snow in the city. Mrs. Cosemento inquired if the area
for the excess snowfall was on the lay-down area at Fitzgibbons and Mr. McMahon stated it was on the
concrete area because it would be safer for the trucks to come in on the concrete. Mr. Schneider
explained that this was about reestablishing good relationships and being good neighbors, and working
towards positive responses.

Page 2 of 4



ADMINISTRATIVE FINANCIAL REPORTS
Motion 02-24-2502: A motion was made by Ms. Zeller to accept January’s financial reports as
presented at 5:17 PM. Motion seconded by Ms. Macey. Motion passed. 5-Aye, 0-Nay, 1-Abstain.

Primary Financial Reporis
Cash Position
Balance Sheet
Profit & Loss Statement
Marina Profit & Loss Statement

Subsidiary Financial Reports
Monthly Bills

Accounts Payable

Accounts Receivable

Grants Receivable Summary
Loan Summary

Schedule of Assets

Sales Report

Mr. Delia reviewed the cash position, balance, and profit/loss statements ending 01/31/2025; cash
position is above cash position of one month ago, the balance sheet total is above one year ago, total
current assets continue to outweigh total current liabilities. Profit/Loss statement, the gross profit year-
to-date is slightly below the previous year. Mr. Delia reiterated that the Port needs to be working at a
profit; the Mission Statement is that the Port wants to assist commerce throughout Oswego County and
central New York. Mr. Schneider stated that the Port needs to have net income being rolled into
retained earnings so that the Port may reinvest in itself to continue to maintain operation and
efficiency.

Ms. Zeller inquired about the impact of price adjustments as well as potential tariffs placed on goods.
Mr. Schneider explained that curves of supply and demand meet at a certain price point and that is
what needs to be assessed. Tariffs will be universal and that should not impact competitiveness,
however it could impact the Port because of the amount of aluminum manufactured in Canada.

Chairman’s Report: Mr. Enwright (on Zoom) commented on the severe winter weather conditions,
is aware of the additional burden and expenses that go with the cost in moving aluminum, and the
coordination that is needed in order to complete it efficiently. He is also aware of the issues with the
freeze-ups on the silo. Issues like adverse weather conditions will need to be taken into consideration
on how to make operations more efficient (i.e. accepting grain in the winter months).

COMMITTEE REPORTS:
Executive Committee: No meeting, no report per Mrs. Cosemento.

Audit and Finance Committee: No meeting, no report per Mr. Delia.
Governance Committee: No meeting, no report per Dr. Kares Smith.

Planning and Development Committee: No meeting, no report per Ms. Macey.

Page 3 of 4



OLD BUSINESS
None.

NEW BUSINESS:

Motion 02-24-2503:

A motion was made by Ms. Zeller to enter into Executive Session for discussion of contracts, grants,
and Board continuity at 5:25 PM. Motion was seconded by Dr. Kares Smith. Motion passed. 5-Aye,
0-Nay, 1-Abstain.

Motion 02-24-2504:
A motion was made by Ms. Zeller to resume the regular monthly meeting at 5:59 PM. Motion was
seconded by Ms. Macey. Motion passed. 5-Aye, 0-Nay, 1-Abstain.

Motion 02-24-2505:

A motion was made by Ms. Zeller to grant the Oswego Yacht Club one (1) slip in the Goble Marina
for the 2025 boating season to support their educational program, “Try Sailing” at 6:00 PM. Motion
was seconded by Mr. Delia. Motion passed. 5-Aye, 0-Nay, 1-Abstain.

Mr. Enwright disclosed that he is a member of the Oswego Yacht Club.

ADJOURNMENT
Motion 02-24-2506: A motion was made by Dr. Kares Smith to adjourn the regular monthly meeting at
6:00 PM. Motion seconded by Ms. Zeller. Motion passed. 5-Aye, 0-Nay, 1-Abstain.

Kathleen Macey, Secretary/Treasurer

Page 4 of 4






PoRrRT OoF OsWEGO

AUTHORITY

Administrative and Operations Report
March 2025

Thomas Schneider, Interim Executive Director

Monthly (February 2025) operations update — see attached
Operating Business

o Transloading and Warehousing
" Aluminum
=  Agricultural Center — grain
= Potash

Marina
o East Side
o West Side

Tennent Updates
o Fish & Wildlife (USGS at 17 Lake Street)
o Vinegar Hill (at 19-29 East Schuyler Street)

Projects
o Breakwall Repair
o Warehouse Modernization Grant
o Electric Railcar Bids

Still Watch Vessel Update

American Great Lakes Port Associations (AGLPA) — Washington D.C.
Legislative Fly-In March 4% - March 7%



TO: BOARD OF DIRECTORS
FROM: George Lloyd
SUBJECT: February 2025 Activity
Report
Totals
#1n #out |Total#Infout| MTIn mMrout | TOWIMT
In/Out
Trucks 0 130 130 0.000 4149.786 4149.786
Railcars 12 7 19 272.517 634.190 906.707
Vessels 0 0 0 0.000 0.000 0.000
Grand Totals 12 137 149 272.517 4783.976 5056.493
Company ST MT In/Out Mode #
Nutrien Ag Solutions 0.00 0.000 Inbound Vessel 0
Potash Nutrien Ag Solutions 0.00 0.000 Inbound Railcar 0
Nutrien Ag Solutions 457.62 415.146 Outhound Trucks 13
Soybeans 0.00 0.000 Inbound Trucks 0
Soybeans 0.00 0.000 Inbound Railcar 0
Soyheans 0.00 0.000 Outbound Trucks 0
Soybeans 699.08 634.190 Quthound Railcar 7
Belonk Grain Soybeans 0.00 0.000 Quthound Vessel 0
Corn 0.00 0.000 Inbound Trucks 0
Corn 0.00 0.000 inbound Railcar 0
Carn 0.00 0.000 Qutbound Trucks 0
Corn 0.00 0.000 Outbound Railcar 0
Corn 0.00 0.000 Outbound Vessel 0
Aluminum Marubeni 0.00 0.000 Inbound Vessel 0
Marubeni 0.00 0.000 Inbound Railcar 0
Marubeni 2440.41 2213.901 QOutbound Trucks 68
Marubeni 0.00 0.000 Inbound Trucks 0
Gerald/GT Comm 0.00 0.000 Inbound Vessel 0
Gerald/GT Comm 0.00 0.000 Inbound Trucks 0
Gerald/GT Comm 0.00 0.000 Inbound Railcar 0
Gerald/GT Comm 456.75 414.356 Outbound Trucks 13
Glencore 0.00 0.000 Inbound Vessel 0
Glencore 0.00 0.000 Outbound Trucks 0
Glencore 0.00 0.000 Inbound Railcar 0
Glencore 0.00 0.000 Inbound Trucks 0
Goldman 0.00 0.000 Inbound Vessel 0
Goldman 0.00 0.000 Inbound Railcar 0
Goldman 0.00 0.000 Inbound Trucks 0
Goldman 1020.46 925.745 Outbound Trucks 30
Goldman 0.00 0.000 Qutbound Railcar 0
Gunvor 0.00 0.000 inbound Vessel 0
Gunvor 0.00 0.000 Qutbound Trucks 0
Gunvor 0.00 0.000 Qutbound Railcar 0
Gunvor 0.00 0.000 Inbound Railcar 0
Gunvor 0.00 0.000 Inbound Trucks 0
IXM 0.00 0.000 Inbound Vessel 0
IXM 0.00 0.000 Inbound Trucks 0




IXM 0.00 0.000 Inbound Railcar 0

IXM 0.00 0.000 Outbound Trucks 0
Mitsubishi 0.00 0.000 Outbound Trucks 0
Mitsubishi 0.00 0.000 Inbound Trucks 0
Mitsubishi 0.00 0.000 Inbound Vessel 0
Mitsubishi 0.00 0.000 Inbound Railcar 0
Hartree 0.00 0.000 Inbound Vessel 0
Hartree 0.00 0.000 Inbound Trucks 0
Hartree 199.12 180.638 Outbound Trucks 6
Hartree 0.00 0.000 Outbound Railcar 0
Hartree 300.40 272.517 Inbound Railcar 12

Alcoa 0.00 0.000 Inbound Vessel 0

Novelis Ingots 0.00 0.000 Inbound Vessel 0
Novelis Ingots 0.00 0.000 Qutbound Trucks 0
Novelis Ingots 0.00 0.000 Inbound Trucks 0
Novelis Ingots 0.00 0.000 Inbound Railcar 0
Novelis Ingots 0.00 0.000 Outbound Railcar 0
Novelis Transfer Loads 0.00 0.000 Outbound Trucks 0
el Rock/Stone 0.00 0.000 Inbound Railcar 0

Rock/Stone




Exhibit C-1



€3 793°80b° LS [e30L
£F'E FETTTS] |
P61 aBerreym - 000002V
St'T 1S/AIORIL 88°6£SE UId UBID SAN - 00L1006H |
79°€ awoou] sl - 00000S Il |
0TS 12)u2)) [BIYNOLSY - JURID - [000006 M
6L°G 28e101S - 000000+l
£9°9 Swpeofup) pue Suipeo] - 00000CTIM
v6L Fuuopaaals - 000009+
S6'8 ey - 000004t
_h.h._m_ SULOaU] mE.—mE u aaaaawﬁ.
%6T T 8¥Er Id VINAA - L100006M |

suadx gl
WO

c2q=4 couef Fo=d PTAON

N0V A

¢Z0T Arenugag yanory 7oz udy

Areurung awoouy

FZI20 prdeg  zdny

70T Leniqa ysnonp 7oz (udy
uoly Aq asuadxyg pue awoou]

4L

peung

FTARIN

s
Fray 00¢-

i0os
E:_:J

10051

000°C
S000°T W §



sse|D Ag

CTTIFBITLS 1BI0]

SO0 ed A

609 euLrejA il $T0T Arenigag ysnomy $707 (udy

%98 £6 Hodl Ameunung swoou]

ST a3 ST uef FC9=2d  FT AON FZ 120 g dog ¥ any e 10 g uny +7 Aoy ¥Z 1dy 005-
0
00s
000°1
005°1
000°C
S000° ur g

asuadxg §T0T Arenuqag ysnony 7oz udy
awoou [iuoy Aq asuadxg pue 2woou]



1:20 PM
03/21/25
Accrual Basis

Port of Oswego Authority
Cash Position Report

As of February 28, 2025

Beginning Ending
Balance Debit Credit Net Change Balance
— a1 == ]
1000600 - Imprast Fund - Key Bank
Total 1000600 - Imprest Fund - Key Bank 2292302 1,648,528.89 1,384,542 84 163,986.05 186,909.07
1000700 - Health Fund - Key Bank
Total 1000700 - Health Fund - Key Bank 1,415.18 1.520.00 2,022.33 -502.33 912.85
1001000 - Comptroller Fund - Key Bank
Total 1001000 - Comptroller Fund - Key Bank 1,254,155.93 338,408.13 1,673,360.45 -1,234,862.32 19,203.61
1001001 - Gen. Stata Checking - Key Bank
Total 1001001 - Gen. State Checking - Key Bank 107,987.58 1,572,292.94 1,519,881.54 52,411.40 160,398.98
1001500 - Key Money Market
Total 1001500 - Key Money Market 30,981.65 2.76 28,500.00 -28,497.24 2,484.41
TOTAL 1,417,463.36 3,460,752.72 4,508,307.16 -1,047,554.44 369,908£

Page 1 of 1



g;g 1'[’2"; Port of Oswego Authority
Accrual Basis Balance Sheet
As of February 28, 2025
Feb 28, 25 Feb 29, 24 $ Change
ASSETS
Current Assets
Checking/Savings
1000100 - Petty Cash 144.99 187.29 -42.30
1000300 - Oswego Marina - Register fund 600.00 600.00 0.00
1000600 - Imprest Fund - Kay Bank 186,909.07 111,950.14 74,958.93
1000700 - Health Fund - Key Bank 912.85 1,399.40 -486.55
1001000 - Comptroller Fund - Key Bank 19,203.61 10,723.36 8,480.25
1001001 - Gen. State Chacking - Key Bank 160,398.98 652,453.30 -492 054.32
1001500 - Key Money Market 2,484.41 201,171.30 -198,686.89
1003200 - CD - Wtrline Maint Fund 10,650.15 10,000.00 650.15
1003300 - CD - Bldg Rehab Fund 102,216.94 90,316.90 11,900.04
Total Checking/Savings 483,521.00 1,078,801.69 -595,280.69
Accounts Receivable
1100000 - Accounts Receivable 161,091.81 94,376.15 66,715.66
Total Accounts Receivable 161,091.81 94,376.15 66,715.66
Other Current Assets
1100103 - Accounts Receivable Other 995.04 995.04 0.00
1100104 - Short term Lease Recelvable 340,994.63 148,452.47 192,542,186
1201000 - Prepaid Insurance 57,920.88 58,463.51 -542.85
1202000 - Prepaid expense 193.05 193.05 0.00
1210000 - Inventory Asset 13,733.85 17,004.40 -3,270.75
1300000 - Grant Receivable 1,325,409.23 272907 1,322,680.16
1400000 - Cont. Stab. Prog. Reserve 12,500.00 0.00 12,500.00
1499000 - Undeposltad Funds 1,535.00 2,560.00 -1,025.00
Total Other Current Assets 1,753,281.26 230,397.54 1,522,883.72
Total Current Assets 2,397,894.07 1,403,575.38 994,318.69
Fixed Assets
1502000 - Land & Land Impr-Capital Assets 14,074,827.75 14,074,827.75 0.00
1502050 - Land & Land Impr-Held for Lease 1,720,082.91 1,537,131.13 182,951.78
1502100 - Alcan Water Line 1.00 1.00 0.00
1502300 - Bldgs & Improvem-Capital Assets 8,515,160.43 8,524 445.43 -9,285.00
1502350 - Bldgs & Improvem-Held for Leasa 4,060,508.32 4,043,402.88 17,105.44
1502400 - Office Equipment & Furniture 489,831.94 480,011.94 -180.00
1502500 - Operating Equipment 3,5268,931.91 3,680,164.57 -153,232.66
1502501 - Equipment - Marina 316,721.80 315,141.60 1,580.00
1502550 - Lease Assets 569,146.74 434,701.63 134,445,711
1502555 - Accumulated Amortization -76,412.37 -130,760.25 54,347.88
1502600 - Computer Software 3287224 32,872.24 0.00
1502800 - Acc Dep-Bldg & Impr-Cap Assets -6,906,904.54 -6,722,169.54 -184,735.00
1502850 - Acc Dep Bldg & Impr-Held for Le -2,445,921.00 -2,331,837.00 -114,084.00
1502900 - Acc Dep - Operating Equip -2,451,505.33 -2,554,080.33 102,575.00
1502905 - Acc Dep - Marina equipmant -238,569.00 -239,567.00 908.00
1603000 - Acc Dep - Office Equipment -468,900.46 -462,481.48 -6,419.00
1503100 - Acc Dep-Land & Impr-Cap Assats -8,623,469.11 -B,048,916.11 -574,553.00
1503101 - Acc Dep - Computer Software -32,872.00 -32,872.00 0.00

Page 1of 3



2:52 PM
03/21/125
Accrual Basis

1503150

1504801

1505800

1505800 *
1506000 -
1506400 -

1506401

1506600 -
1507300 -
1607400 -

1507500
1507800
1507802
1508600
Total Fixed A
Other Assets

1100105 : Long Term Lease Receivable

+ Acc Dep Land & Impr-Held for Le
1503200 -
1503800 -
1504000 -
1504200 -
+ Cap Imp - Office Improv (Meg's)
1504900 -
1505600 -
1505700 -
+ Cap Imp - Railcar conveyor

Cap Imp - '23 PFRAP Pin 3935.88
Cap Imp - Marina sewer imprvmt

+ Cap Imp - Elect. Railcar Mover
Cap Imp - RV Park

- Cap Imp-Marina Hoist Dock rehab
- Cap Imp - FEMA-West 2017

- Cap Imp - FEMA-East 2017

- Cap Imp-REDI 195156-Goble Marina

ssels

Acc Dep - Lease Asset
Equipment - New or Replacement
Cap Imp-Osw.Marina bidg update
Cap Imp - Warehouse roof

Cap Imp - Gas Dock improvements

Cap Imp - Agricultural Center
Cap Imp - Marina Pumpout System

Cap Imp - Warehouse doors

Cap Imp - Scales

Cap Imp-Marina elect. upgrade

1100106 - Interest Receivable

1800000 - Pension - Deferred Qutflow
1800001 - Deferred Outflow - OPEB

Total Other Assets

TOTAL ASSETS
LIABILITIES & EQUITY

Llabllities

Current Liabilities

Accounts Payable

2000100 - Accounts Payable

Total Accounts Payable
Credit Cards

2000101 - Key Bank - Bill Mastercard
2000103 - Lowe's cradit card

Total Credit Cards
Other Current Liabilities

2000200

* Retainage Payable
2000300 -
2000610 -
2000700 -
2001000 -
2001200 -

Accounts Payable Other
Deposits raceived

Refund payable

Accruad Salarles
Accrued Compensation

Port of Oswego Authority

Balance Sheet
As of February 28, 2025

Feb 28, 25 Feb 29, 24 5 Change
-166,594.00 -96,532.00 -70,062.00
-158,555.00 -158,555.00 0.00

5,873.58 59,757.49 -53,883.91
13,086.72 0.00 13,096.72
38,780.00 Q.00 38,790.00

2,160.44 Q.00 2,160.44

0.00 1,031.76 -1,031.76

14,987 ,492.74 14,587,782.62 389,710.12
11,066.78 10,752.71 314.08
0.00 11,546.14 -11,546,14
192,002.98 0.00 192,002,938
7,840.00 0.00 7,840.00
0.00 17,105.44 -17,105.44
15,064.87 0.00 15,064.87
0.00 123,858.04 -123,858.04
49,498.00 93,603.23 -44,105.23
0.00 57,955.02 -57,955.02
51,394.97 0.00 §1,394.97
4,346,831.81 397,135.38 3,949,696.42

1,689,658.29 1,685,658.29 0.00

2,094,867.24 1,938,094.60 155,772.64

35,242,020.46 31,344,210.21 3.,897.810.25

1,006,769.70 961,847.09 44,922.61

2,888.02 2,211.20 676.82

416,815.00 -190,195.00 807,010.00
251,739.00 385,391.00 -133,652.00
1.678.211.72 1,159,254.29 518,957.43
39,318,126.25 33,907,039.88 5,411,086,37
358,934.95 75,245.93 283,689.02
358,934.95 75,245.93 283,689.02
6,437.67 2,732.75 3,704.92
244,82 244.99 -0.17
6,682.49 2977.74 3,704.75
174,894.95 0.00 174,894 .95
46,266.66 557.85 45,708.81
25,000.00 25,000.00 0.00
181,658.15 0.00 181,658.15
37,372.40 37,502.49 -130.09
74,102.28 58,468.03 15,634.25

Page 2 of 3



2:52 PM
03/21/25
Accrual Basis

Port of Oswego Authority

Balance Sheet
As of February 28, 2025

2001600 - Accrued NYS Ratirement Withheld
2001700 - NYS Retirement Loan Withheld
2001800 - NYS Retlrement Arrears Withheld
2002700 - Accrued NYS PFL withheld
2003000 - #1570A Pension Fund

2003100 - 1570 1% Checkeff Withheld
2003200 - 1570 1/10% Checkoff Withheld
2003300 - 1570A 9/10% Checkeoff Withheld
2003401 - 1570A Local Dues Withheld
2004500 - Accrued Mass Mutual withheld
2005600 - Payments on Insurance Claims
2005700 - Short Term Lease Liability
2550000 - Sales Tax Payable

Total Other Current Liabilities

Total Current Liabilities

Long Term Liabilities
2500400 - NYS Retirement Employer Contri
2500500 - Advances from NYS
2500600 - Vehicle Note Payable
2600801 - Line of Credit 0169-Pathfinder
2501400 - OPEB liability
2501700 - LOC 1753 Pathfinder-Goble/FEMA
2502200 - Note Payable-SANY Forklift-LEAF
2502300 - Note Payable-SANY Wheel Loader
2503500 - Long Term Lease Liability
2600000 - Net Penslon Liability - ERS
2800001 - Deferred Inflow - OPEB
2800002 - Deferred Inflow - Lessor

Total Long Term Liabilities

Total Liabilities

Equity

3000500 -
3001000
3001500 -
3001600 -

Contributed Capital

- Contributed Capital - Federal
Grant from NYS

Grant MultiCodul Capital Pro]

3001700 * Grant-MultiModal
3001800 - Grant Energy Savings
3005000 + Retained Earnings
Nat Income

Total Equity

TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY

Feb 28, 25 Feb 29, 24 $ Change
1.673.46 873.19 800,27
964.00 722.00 242.00
488.88 61.90 426,98
2,595.93 2,253.80 342.33
76,872.01 14,595.25 62,276.76
1,065.56 196.64 868.92
106.43 19.68 86.75
958.97 176.98 781.99
1,795.75 369.50 1,428.25
-231.13 -167.75 -63.38
961.95 961.95 0.00
168,301.02 71,786.16 96,514.87
-13,996.35 -10,286.58 -3,709.76
780,850.93 203,090.88 577,760.05
1.146,468.37 281,314.55 865,153.82
0.00 10,289.00 -10,289.00
3,355,925.71 3,405,925.71 -50,000.00
38,534.65 45,576.91 -7,042.28
62,274.30 0.00 62,274.30
1,655.480.00 1,559,497.00 95,883.00
950,000.00 0.00 950,000.00
363,783.40 431,803.43 -68,020.03
209,748.46 0.00 209,748.46
173,863.84 77.,065.21 96,798.63
491,403.00 -187,532.00 678,935.00
878,276.00 1,084,415.00 -206,139.00
1,266,009.17 1,058,210.30 207,798.87
9,445,298.53 7,485,250.56 1,960,047.97
10,591,766.90 7,766,565.11 2,825,201.79
144,546.00 144,946.00 0.00
45,777.00 45,777.00 0.00
2,253,367.90 2,253,367.90 0.00
2,073,783.33 2,073,783.33 0.00
370,000.00 370,000.00 0.00
50,000.00 50,000.00 0.00
20,302 ,491.02 19,678,911.68 623,579.34
3,475,994 10 1,513,688.86 1,962,305.24
28,726,359.35 26,140, 474.77 2,585,884.58
39,318,126.25 33,907,039.88 5,411,086.37




T o | abeg

%9 4 05498 05 LED'LE 00°5Z6' |- 00GEL'TL 00'008'06 05°Z90° L 0o 0o woddng wwog - x3 g ddng Jedg - 0051559
%Z' L 04658 EE'BOZ'E al'vik SERLET £9'BFEE LYLEE oo'n 0o’ Asep pasjaly - %3 g ddng dads . eDELSSY
8T SETSE'rL 00'05L'e9 ZS09R - gl ] S6'Z09°e8 ooosz'e BlLage'e EZ'ERE'w sayddng [epoadg - eQo0s5S
%l 08 B0'9SE LG B9B0F LUERL SLEEL L FEER Ll oo SSNONICASICOGHION YISD - 0000T5S
A ST FEL'E0L- 48'998°93¢ BEZSD'GL- L4 FES'SEE BE'ELF'ESE EE'EEE'EE SESE5 FL BE'SLE'SLE uoisuad vl - 0000059
gk £1'65.L'06- 00°000°02E 15 LPE'EY SE'BEZ'IET 19'OPEBLE 00°000'0E Lg'BELL 90°SE" L2 SAOURINSU| YYEIH - BO00STS
%'z~ 0O BEF'S- BOTELO'FSE LEELD'LE LT105'4ZE BO'SLLEHE EFEEQ'HL 8L 00E'E 925516 saxe] [loafed - EQ000FS
He'0- O0Z'9EL- LYLBEFE SLZLR'L TLTPE'ET LFS5LFE EEBOZ'E ZE'BLO'L BEVLE'E sapddng proyasnoy - BR00SES
HLIER LEBIE'PE EEEER'DS SEEZE'FE SFOEE'LS 0£'259°18 Lggst's LTS0EL LOPOL'E Jamad b ‘jand - e0000ES
WS FEL SE'EEE'L L99LE 00552 00'SE8' L 00°05L'E EEER o000 oo sasuadxa 714 - 00009ZS
%05 0€'£05 EE'EBD'OL £LBEE'E 05'Z62'8 906501 ouE BE LB E0GLE SUOHEHUMUWCY) - BODDSZ
%l BE- BSFES 0L A9'989'9E SHFEL'GL- #5002 Lt BOEFL'ST LEEEE'E FEBZO'E LR Bunuird 'g Guispaapy - E0000Z9
%6 2" LLEEE'B- 20°SLE'6LE 05'BES'E Ly vEL 908 LEZBE'DLE Z6'9F0'6T 62 BEP'SE 65 PEE'LT asuadyy ajueinsu] [eIauag) - 00T0SEY
Yo b6 LYSERE- 000528 652029 T8'9L0°LE EEFLE'PS 00'052'S B IEG SOZle'e sanddng a2 - 200051
Yl 92- 95°04E" LI~ L9992'e 640490 05'SE9°6E LLGEE'HE EEEEB'E BELEL'E SREEL'E asuadxa |and - €000L L9
%10 895°Z 199998 oF'Z0e EG'OREE £2699'E £E'EEE 000 eoLLE asuadx3 o)y - BO0D0LY
WL B Bo'esE'S LYIBLL BEYLE'S 9g'EEL L SEBFL'EL FES0L #5098 0T TLIEE asuadxg jaael) - E000509
%E G- B6'66F 6L LT B9 rEE L 9T VET L2 05'SEE 'L TTLILGLEL LS'SLL'BEL ZE605'98 02 92206 J0MUBS [BUOSIAd - DOODOOS

asuadxgy

%1 FE- TEELE LL6- 08 198'F50'F 80'8FY LES- 95°5EE'BO9'E SHBES'SL0'E 08'E98'FLT ¥5'95 ‘6O LOEET'BIT o S80I

%9 - 0F LSS 64 00'000'0FE LS'SES'BE- LERS0'6EE 09TFF06E 0'e 0o'n 0o'n S200 oL
B8 L~ OF 455 68 00°000°0FE Le'STS'BE- LE'B90'6EE 09 ZFF' 06T oo o] oo'n PIOS SPOOS) JO IS0 - 0000EY

Piog Spo0D jO S0

%t ET- ZL0ES'LEO L 08'L99FEE'F BYELE' DR LLPOP'LEE'E BOBELLSE'E 08°508'FLE ¥5°95L 60T LO'CEE BEE WOIU| (3oL
%089 no'osg'L 00°000°E 00°0st'e 0o 00'09E'E oo 000 0on Wied AY - 0000GEY
%0°8- 0T 1 LB'BE- 00°0SE'ERL TEBE0'6E- ZLRIGES 03'98F'ETL 00°000'8E LBISLRL BS'9EC 1L SwoJu| BULEW - 0000DBY
%0001~ 00'005'28- 00°005'28 ZLLLE'GE- ZVLLB'SE oon 007005'L 0oo Ll AUBYS 0 - 00005 LK
%L LG" B9 LL0'BES- 00°000'9LE'L 847409 165- BO'0ES'SEL') LEETE'LAS o000 000 Ll Bupopanalg - 000009
WETE- BFGEE'LEL- O0'SEL'GEE S98LE'9E" LV POE'S0E £5'58E'BOT 00'SL6'SE SETPE'D Z5'088'02 A0S ISIN - 000005
%L E0POE AL 0891550 OE'B5E 1T ES'TEY LG £0°086'209 OB'BES'SS ZFEZEP'EE LEPLIR'EE 1By - 0OD00TY
WOEL- 0E8bE 4L~ L916L'398 SHZES'E 25255 L0k LEGIE LGN EEBOLLS SLEDE'Er BE'SES'PS Buipeojun pue Bupeo - 00000CK
%9 LE- 06"4¥5'g8- 00'000'0EE 98'260'LL- 9605 DEE 0L ZSP'ERL oo 00 000 abiepeun - 00D00ZE
%9 Th- 69095 00'000'00 L 24'509'2E- E0FLLD'0B VELLP'LS 0o 000 000 abeXaoq - 00000y
%68 L5y’ £E'80.L'09E LE'0EE 00 ETPEP'BLE FEPSL'9ZY L9VBLEE SLOES'ES SEOFE'Gl aBe1ois - 000000

S0

asuadxgraiosu) euipag

jebpng wouy ebpng 1aap ¢ wbpng 1oug Jofid [enyoy 196png 2 a8d 52 ge4
BOUBLIBA, B, Q] ajuelen
a1eq o} ieajp, a12(] 0] pouad
5z0g fsenigag
Jusuislels swoau) Biseg [Rruaoy

SZNZIE0
Auoyiny obamsg Jo Hod Wd 2£7€



T jo g afieg

%ok LE- AR T TYBST'SH0'S ¥Z'S0E'296"L S9°989°C1LS") OL'FBE'SLF D LBEBE 3L LLBLY'E6 9L PFY'SE" awoIu| 39N

Yol Gl- VELOL'TLL: SEVETRIES Y PEEOF LID'E ELOZE L¥E'L LOEEL'E5RE 00'00n'e LLBLETE FLESE'0- SWOIU] 130 18N

2:0'001 20°0L0'EAL 0o St ERF'PE T LTS 8L SO0LO'ERI 0o'n E0BLLEL E0SET ¥ asuadxg JaNO (2101

%:0°00k B00LO'EBL oo 9k B FE T LES B 80'0L0'ER L 0o EO'BLLER SOSEE FL asuadx3 uoneZIMOWY - DDSSO06
asuadxg 1810

%L Th £l Le0'6Rs" SR PEY' LES'Y OF LEB'SHE'T SEEFE'SEE'L SLEELLPDY 00°'GO0°E ¥LGBE'STL BEELCE SO JIRO [EIOL

340°00L Esd ek 0o'o LLERLLEL ooo Lrzas'iel oo 0o 0o'o CISMIRIL BT EESE Wid WRID SAM - D0LLO0G

g9k 4098 FOEZT' LRI 82801 208 60525 BEE LE'BEE'96 oo'e 0o’ oo BULB 2009 - [O3Y - 00FL006

070 000 0o 00°000°592- 00°000'692 oo'o v 0o'e 0o’ awdinba yo aeg j vogany - KZ00006

3602 12°008'Lag- SRSLLBRL BFBS00I6'T O9G0Z'HLE F1E0Z'LBE'E o' oo'e 0o’ BrEP WO YW - LLOODOS

%00 L0- LFBSE9E 09'594'A9T- PS5 FE0'GEE ¥5 B5ESE 0o'n ELLLO'ELL 000 J31d 13 65°SE6E Uid WIS SAM - PLOODOG

%0'001- 00'ong- 00'008 BE'ERL b BETFL'L 000 0o'n 85k L 0oo SNOBUE|[SISIW ~ SJUBLD - L0006

%:6'99 EFESR' PG 85°996'0EE ZL'OLE'ESE GEBLS' LT LO'OEF'SEE 0o’ oo 0o'o Jsjuag [eanynauby - Jueig - LO0ODOE

%552 ZLBBE'S- 00'000°EE LE'DOL'ES- 65 L0L LY 82 108°%T 00°000°'E B TLE' Y 06 'SBE SWoou| ysassul - G000006

%000k S5'EEQ'GE oo BE'SLE'OL 09°8LL'ST 96'€E0"9E 0o'n PELIZE BLLBRE S3SEDT - SWOTU| 54| - GEEGEES

LT L TTTETT) Ty
asUadxg/Auoou| S0

e BF - LE'Eas'gLe- PLEEREER 0L L60'6FE- £1'80¢2'992 15624 208 VBEBE' LB PSOFLEL- £9'269'82- awoou| LEUDIQ AN
G LO'OLE' LEL- 90°'8ZR0ES'E THEFE' LS £F'895'LOF'E S0°9HEBSF'E 197 L50'96E B0 L6F'ZEE EE'926'L5T asuady (ejo)
e Lb- LE'BLE'E LFLFD'S EL000'SL- B0 FOSLL 92°E98'E EEBSK FAN: L LO'EFR asuadx3 Jybald - 000D0ES
%5061 1290869 £9°999'9€E SEFLL'ED S5 'Er BYEES 00L EEEEE'E LESFE'T ZOHER'FL asuadig 15as8qu| - 0000SBY

Yl g L9'E05 00°05Z'8 LyRab'L- FILEZ0N LETGLR 00705 L0289'L LOTLES"L wnasny - 0000089
%00 oo 000 =T e =l oo oo oo 000 SHO AL - 00005 LT
0004 Eh'ZeeE- ZTLEIT'E 0070 0o 000 TEE6T 000 000 SB|21Yan - 95897 - LOCOOLY
%6768~ 00'ZL8 Lk 00°890'59L 00 LBL'S 00'60F' L 00°961'EE O0BEF'FL 00 FEL'EL o000 sasea| juawdinba saugo - 3537 - QOC00LS

%8 18- 00'gzo'ee- O0'BEL'ST 009LL'S ilelv} oneLk's O0BGS'E o000 00°855'E a)iqoy ¥oel1-85837 - DOZ00LI
a6 LLELE L EE'BGT'LL SEELY' LI LESB0CE alsar'e LOLE0'L o0Q oog S[euay - 00000LS
9:0°004 BLGEME'L 000 LETEE LE96E L 2L6LS'E 000 000 000 auloseD SO - 0000499
%00 000 00 SEvrle'e BEFIED o000 000 000 000 suapode | 0§ anp suedsy - 0000999
BeGLL V5 9EE'TEL 19'989'69 ¥O'O5E'sE PS5 9ED'T0L 81EES' 1L EEEEE'D SEBEL'E £6°900'ZE aoueUSquIEl 2 snedsy - BODO0SS
A TLEBE'L 8z 'vi0'ae 0045108 0000k 00°455'6Z LEERG'L 000 GliLe's S0IAS [ENUYIAL - 000DESS
%0'E9Z Z60EL 90'PLE 00'SER oo OGBS Z5'FE 000 000 Bupupes | juojieonps - DOO0DESS

%L O LSELE'SL BY'8RL0Q BE'¥RS LT THEES'LE 0T80L'6L LERIE'L LE'BRL'E 0UBLS'E sasuadxy g ddng euuey - 0O0DLSY
L6l LLOLS'EE EEEER'ZEL 56 LES G- 66188 16 FOPRE'SL L9'enLLL E'96E VT 00T 53025 [BUOISSAl0L] - DOODISY

yebpng wouy wBpng 1asp ¢ webpng 10ud Joud [enyoy jabpng ¥Z a4 §Z a9d
FOUBLIEN, 9 0] anjueLEp,
ajeq ol 1edp ajeq o) pouad
§Z0z Muenigad
jusuielels swoduj Siseg [emiooy

SZTILEIED
fuoyiny oBamsgo Jo pod Wd 28°€



Exhibit C-2



Port of Oswego Authority February 6, 2025
Imprest Bills W-125

C&S Engineers, Inc. $45,705.17
Professional Services - West Terminal Repairs (Construction Inspection)
from 10/26/2024-11/29/2024

$45,705.17



Port of Oswego Authority February 6, 2025

Imprest Bills W-126

Burke's Do-it-Best Home Center $8.34
Key Cut for 3 Keys for Grain Electric Room

Cintas $161.58
Work Unifroms & Floor Mats

CIT Group Inc $2,558.00
Trackmobile Lease

Computer Outlet North, Inc. $1,599.00
New Computer for Office Staff, 10-Hour Service Agreement

DJ Murray Construction $950.00
Drop Ceiling in Human Resources Office

Glider Qil $448.50
Port Propane

NaGr #-05002 Gas & Elec New Garage $783.81
Electric Delivery & Supply (1 Account)

Paychex $964.10
Payroll Administration & Fees

Pups Lock & Key $1,098.40
Lock Replacement at Mechanics Garage

Shark Welding & Repair Service $3,840.00
Equipment Repair & Maintenance

CHECK TOTAL PAID $12,411.73

Page 1 of 1



Port of Oswego Authority February 11, 2025

Imprest Bills

AmVet Office Supplies, LLC
Office Supplies - Toner Cartridge, Copy Paper

Bahcock Highway Supply, Inc.
Shop Use/Safety ltems - Winter Jackets

Benefit Resource, Inc.
Pre-tax Monthly Administration Fee for January 2025 & Beniversal
Card Activation

Bond, Schoeneck & King, PLLC
Legal Services - Scope of Wark Grievance, through 12/31/2024

Butler Disposal Systems Inc
Trash & Recycle Service, Dumpster Rental, Container Lift, Fuel Surcharges

C & B Farm & Garden
Propane Refill to Thaw Rail Switch

Chirello Advertising
Advertising Services - Print Ad in Oswego County Today - Jan, 2025

City of Oswego Water - #000004-000
Water & Sewer for 1 East 2nd Street

City of Oswego Water - #006583-000
Lake Road Water Line

Computer Outlet North, Inc.
Monthly E-Mails & Cloud Back-up, & Monitoring Application

Ed & Ed Business Technology, Inc.
Contract Charge for Copier

Glider Oil
Port Propane

Haun Welding Supply Inc.
Cylinder Rental - January 2025

Hurtubise Tire, Inc.
Tire Repairs for the RT Forklift ML1/Loader

LEAF
Heavy-Duty Forklift Monthly Payment & Wheel Loader Monthly Payment

Lifetime Benefit Solutions, Inc.
COBRA Employer Subsidy

National Grid
Electric & Gas Supply & Delivery - 14 Accounts

PathFinder Bank - LOC (Goble/FEMA)
Interest Payment on LOC

Page 1 of 2

W-127

$183.52

$300.00

$102.50

$190.00

$353.65

$14.82

$944.12

$468.48

$117.21

$216.00

$124.43

$175.21

$170.56

$562.50

$11,745.62

$675.91

$11,648.51

$9,041.77



Raby's Ace Homecenter

Resilient Support Services, Inc.

Port of Oswego Authority February 11, 2025

Imprest Bills
60 LB Tube Sand - for Rear of Port Pick-Up Truck

Office Supplies - Office Chair

S&B Computer and Office Products, Inc.

Shark Welding & Repair Service

State Insurance Fund

Verizon Business

Wells Technology, Inc

WEX Inc.

Office Supplies - Port Water, USGS Water, Port Water Cooler Rental,
USGS Water Cooler Rental, & Credits

Equipment Repair & Maintenance - 644G, ML1. T-1, F-7, & F-10 Repairs

Worker's Compensation Monthly Instaliment

Cell Phones for Tom Schneider, Pat McMahon, Tammy DeCarr, &
George Lundy

Shop Use ltems - Misc. Nuts & Bolts

Fuel for Port Vehicles

Page 2 of 2

W-127

$56.65

$274.80

$289.23

$4,800.00

$1,550.92

$125.85

$1,564.05

$513.38

$46,209.69



Port of Oswego Authority February 18 - 19, 2025

Imprest Bills

American Great Lakes Ports Association
Membership Dues - 1st Quarter 2025

C&S Engineers, Inc.
Professional Services 03/30/2024-01/03/2025 - Goble Dry Dock &
Professional Services 11/30/2024-12/31/2024 - Lake Ontario Flooding

Glider Oil
Port Propane

NaGr #-05002 Gas & Elec New Garage
Electric Supply & Gas Supply & Delivery (1 Account)

Pitney Bowes Purchase Power
Postage Meter Ré&fill

Shark Welding & Repair Service
Equipment Repair & Maintenance

Page 1 of 1

W-129

$4,772.75

$11,079.12

$224.15

$746.82

$201.00

$5,760.00

$22,783.84



Port of Oswego Authority February 18, 2025
Imprest Bills W-132

WD Malone $380,468.43
WT Repairs Pay Apps #8

$380,468.43



Port of Oswego Authority February 21, 2025
Imprest Bills W-135

Comproller, State of New York $50,000.00
2024-2025 Supplemental Agreement Payment

$50,000.00



AmVet Office Supplies, LLC

Business Council of NYS, Inc.

Butler Disposal Systems Inc

Cintas

CSEA Employee Benefit Fund

Glider Oil

GM Financial Leasing

LEAF

Lowe's

Oswego Auto Parts

Port of Oswego Authority
Imprest Bills

Office Supplies - Batteries, Post-It Notes, Copy Paper, Markers
Life, AD&D, & LTD Insurance

Container Lift & Fuel Surcharge

Work Uniforms & Floor Mats

Employee Dental & Vision Insurance

Port Propane, Port Diesel

Monthly Equinox Lease Payment

Copier Lease

Monthly Credit Card Charges

February 25, 2025
W-133

$118.58

$376.98

$110.00

$288.88

$1,517.48

$775.35

$292.92

$156.99

$81.40

$273.01

Qil for the Trackmobile, Automatic Transmission Shift Tube for 2006 F-250

PathFinder Bank - 2024 Chevy P/U

Paychex

Paychex

Resilient Support Services, Inc.

SUNY Oswego

Taylor Northeast, Inc.

Monthly Vehicle Loan Payment

Payroll Administration & Fees

Payroll Administration & Fees

Office Supplies - Web Cam

Payroll for Probe Lab Students

Forklift Rentals (13 Rentals)

Page 1 of 1

$833.15

$891.25

$947.23

$22.00

$6,777.75

$12,558.00

$26,020.97



C&S Engineers, Inc.

February 25, 2025

Port of Oswego Authority
W-134

Imprest Bills

$59,224.37

Professional Services - West Terminal Repair (Construction Inspection),
Grain Handling (Construction Administration), Multi-Sector Permit &
SWPPP, Misc. Engineering Tasks, 2023 PFRAP (Track & Silo), &

East Marina Boat Hoist Wall (from 11/01/2024-01/17/2025)
$59,224.37



3:25 PM
03/21/25

Port of Oswego Authority

A/P Aging Summary
As of February 28, 2025

A.N. Martin Systems LLC

Aflac

Avaya Financial Services

Benefit Resource, Inc.

BJ's Whoelesale Club Inc

Brady Systems

C & B Farm & Garden

C&S Engineers, Inc.

Cardiac Life Products, Inc.

Cintas

CIT Group Ine

City of Oswego Water - #005071-000
City of Oswego Water - #005430-000
City of Oswego Water - #005825-000
Davis Harrison Dion, Inc.

Glider Qil

Key Bank - B

LEAF

LexisNexis

Lindsey Aggregates, Inc.

Mohawk Global Logistics Corp

NaGr #-09104 Lighting-1 Gate, 1 NE Corner
NaGr #-38107 Gas Museum

NaGr #-38118 Marina - Unit B

NaGr #-39107 F&W

NaGr #-40109 Electric Derrick

NaGr #-41109 Electric Museum

NaGr #-47025 Marina - Pler B

NaGr #-74022 Vinegar Hill

NaGr #-B3002 - 22 Mercer - Security Pole
Oswego Auto Parts

Palladium Times/Sample News Group Oswego
PathFinder Bank - LOC

PathFinder Bank - LOC (Goble/FEMA)
Pitney Bowas Global Financial Serv LLC
S&B Computer and Office Products, Inc.
Securitas Technology Corporation
Shark Welding & Repalr Service
Spectrum Business (Marina)

Spectrum Business (Port)

Taylor Northeast, Inc.

TK Elavator Corporation

WD Malone

Wells Technology, Inc

WEX Inc.

TOTAL

Currant 1-30 31-860 61-90 91-120 =120 TOTAL
1,755.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,765.00
834.66 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 B34.86
2,145.50 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 2,145.50
100.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 100.00
375.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 375.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 18,088.00 18,088.00
25,55 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 25.55
18,823.60 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 18,823.60
0.00 840.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 840.00
58,57 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 58.57
2,558.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 2,558.00
180.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 180.00
180.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 180.00
180.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 180,00
0.00 4,187.50 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 4,187.50
1,986.65 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,986.65
3,397.63 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 3,397.63
11,745.62 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 11,745.62
618.00 0.00 206.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 824.00
740,03 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 740.03
187.50 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 187.50
119.07 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 119.07
463,62 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 463.62
641,95 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 641,95
2,848.11 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 2,848.1
20.09 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 20.09
652.59 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 652.59
36.10 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 36.10
20.71 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 20.71
29.36 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 20.36
2,326.30 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 2,326,230
52.87 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 52.87
1,768.80 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,768.80
8,166.76 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 8,166.78
201.18 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 201.18
588.09 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 588.09
0.00 0.00 0.00 486192 0.00 0.00 4,861.92
7,200.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 7,200.00
130.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 130.00
175.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 175.00
11,015.14 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 11,015.14
0.00 386.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 a.00 386.00
247 42441 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 24742441
181.52 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 181.52
412,55 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0,00 412.55
330,365.53 5413.50  206.00 4,861.92 358,934.95

0.00

18,088.00

Page 1



2:56 PM Port of Oswego Authority
03/22/25 A/R Aging Summary
As of February 28, 2025
Currant 1-30 31-60 61-90 91-120 =120 TOTAL
*Transient 0.00 0.00 0.00 756.00 0.00 3008362 0 3,854.62
Burke, Tom 1,150.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,150.00
Burkhart, Dave 0.00 1,125.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,125.00
Coffey, Greg 1,150.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,150.00
Creasy, Troy 0.00 1,300.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,300.00
DelLong, Frederick 0.00 -375.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 -375.00
Garcia, Joe 0.00 0.00 0.00 864.00 0.00 608.00 1.472.008
General Services Admin. 9,016.41 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 9.016.41
Glencore LTD. 1,798 49 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,798.49
Goldman Sachs & Co 10,178.92 0.00 0.00 0.00 -0.01 0.00 10,178.91
GT Commaodities (Gerald Metals) 1,930.90 12,071.79 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 14,002.69
Gunvor SA 36,791.67 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 36,791.67
Hartree Partners, LP 4,108.69 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 4,108.69
Heidelberg Materlals (Lehigh) 0.00 -6,170.51 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 -6,170.51
Hogan, Edward I| 0.00 1,300.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,300.00
Kerr, James 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,204 78 € 1,204.78
Kirby Gregory 0.00 1,125.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,125.00
Krott, Kenneth 0.00 1,300.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,300.00
Lackwood, Jeremy 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 135.00 135.00
Logistec Corporation 17,833.51 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 17,833.51
Manning, Grag 0.00 0.00 0.00 864.00 0.00 1,472.00 2,336.008
Marubeni America Corp. 17,773.55 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 17,773.55
McKeil Marine 0.00 0.00 5707.81F 1475500 0.00 0.00 7,183.31
McKemmie, James 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 513.00 @ 513.00
Mohawk Global 264576 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 2,64576
Novelis-Oswego Works 0.00 10,106.25 5,537.50 0.00 0.00 0.00 15,643.75
Nutrien Ag Solutions - CPS 915.06 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 915.06
Oswego Expeditions/Destination Exped|... 0.00 0.00 0.00 -100.00 0.00 0.00 -100.00
Shark-Attach, LLC 0.00 425.00 425.00 325.00 0,00 0.00 1,175.00 ﬁ
Staves, James 2,450.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 2,450.00
The Delong Co., Inc. 1,165.12 Q.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,165.12
WT Terminal Oswego, LLC 7,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 7.000.00
TOTAL 115,908.08 22,207.53 11,670.31 4,184.50 -0.01 7.121.40 161,091.81

1. Collections

2. Statement sent with letter

3. Makiing payments

4, Statement sent with letter

5. Left message and statement sent with letter

6. Recelved 3/3/25 & 3/19/25

7. Recelved 3/3/25

8. Left message and staternent sent with letter

Received 3/4/25



Grants Receivable Summary

as of 2/28/2025

Project # Name Grant Receivable
FEMA 4348 37407 |East & West Terminals S 691,158.50
REDI Funds 19515|Goble Marina S  242,644.18
PFRAP 3935.59|Goble Marina 5 100.10
DOT 3935|Agricultural Center S 311,749.19
DOT 3935.65(East Terminal Track Rehab 5 2,729.07
DOT 3935.88|PFRAP - Addl. Track & Storage 5 77,028.19

S 1,325,409.23

3/21/2025



Port of Oswego Authority

Loan Summary
as of February 28, 2025

Name Loan Balance Available Rate
NYS first advances $ 3,355,925.71 5 - 0.000%
Pathfinder Bank - LOC S 62,274.30 S 437,725.70 7.500%
Pathfinder Bank - LOC FEMA/REDI $ 950,000.00 S 450,000.00 7.500%
Note Payable - SANY Forklift S 363,783.40 S - 7.750%
Note Payable - 2024 Chevy Silverado S 3853465 5 - 6.875%
Note Payable - SANY Wheel Loader S 209,748.46 S - 6.750%



3:02 PM
3/21/25
Accrual Basis

Fixed Assets

1502000 -
1502050 -
1502100 -

1502300
1502350

1502600

Land & Land Impr-Capital Assets
Land & Land Impr-Held for Lease
Alcan Water Line

: Bldgs & Improvem-Capltal Assets
- Bldgs & Improvem-Held for Lease
1502400
1502500 -
1602501 -
1502550 -

Office Equipment & Furniture
Operating Equipment
Equipment - Marina

Lease Assets

+ Computer Software

Total Fixed Assets

Port of Oswego Authority

Schedule of Assets
As of February 28, 2025

Cost

14,074,827.75
1,720,082.91
1.00
8,515,160.43
4,060,508.32
489,831.94
3,526,931.91
316,721.60
569,146.74
32,872.24

Accum. Depr.

-8,623,469,11
-166,594.00
0.00
-6,906,904.54
-2,445,921.00
-468,900.46
-2,451,505.33
-238,569.00
-158,555.00
-32,872.24

Net Book Value
=

5,451,358.64
1,553,488.91
1.00
1,608,255.89
1,614,587.32
20,931.48
1,075,426.58
78,152.60
410,591.74
0.00

33,306,084.84

-21,493,290.68

11,812,794.16

Page 1 of 1



3:28 PM
03/21/25
Accrual Bagls

Income

4000000 - Storage
4000100 - Storage - Novells
4002800 - Storage - Marubeni
4002900 - Storage - Glencore
4003000 - Storage - Goldman Sachs
4003300 - Storage - ARG Intl.
4003400 - Storage - Mercurla
4003500 - Storage - Mitsublshl
4003600 - Storage - The Andersons
4003900 - Storage - Kuehne & Nagel
4004100 - Storage - SQC Metals
4004200 - Storage - Gunvor
4004300 - Storage - Hartree Partners
4004400 - Storage - The Delong Co.
4004500 - Storage - GT Commadities
4005000 - Storage - Miscellaneous
4008100 - Storage - IXM

Total 4000000 - Storage

4100000 - Dockage
4100100 - Dockage - Algoma Central
4100200 - Dockage - Lehigh (Heidelberg)
4102200 - Dockage - New England Steamship
4102700 - Dockage - McKeil Marine
4102900 - Dockage - WT Terminal
4105000 - Dockage - Miscellaneous

Total 4100000 - Dockage

4200000 - Wharfage
4200100 - Wharfage - Nutrien Ag
4200200 - Wharfage - Lehigh (Heidelberg)
4202500 - Wharfage - Marubeni
4202700 - Wharfage - Glencore
4203100 - Wharfage - Goldman Sachs
4203300 - Wharfage - IXM
4203500 - Wharfage - Mercuria
4203600 - Wharfage - WT Terminal Oswego
4203900 - Wharfage - Gunvor
4205700 - Wharfage - Mitsubishi
4205800 - Wharfage - Hartree Partners LP
4205900 - Wharfage - ARG

Total 4200000 - Wharfage

4300000 - Loading and Unloading
4300200 - Loading and Un - Nutrien Ag
4300300 ' Loading and Un - Novelis
4304900 - Loading and Un - Glencore
4305000 - Loading and Un - Miscellaneous
4305100 - Loading and Un - Marubeni
4305400 - Loading and Un - Goldman Sachs
4305600 - Loading and Un - ARG Int.
43056700 - Loading and Un - IXM
4305800 - Loading and Un - Mercuria
4306900 - Loading and Un - Mitsubishi

Port of Oswego Authority

YTD Sales Report

April 2024 through February 2025

Apr '24 - Feb 26 % Apr'23 - Feb 24 % § Change
0.00 0.0% 5,000,00 0.1% -5,000.00
50,772.89 1,5% 32,568.67 0.8% 18,204.22
45,521.05 1.4% 58,209.08 1.4% -10,688.01
67,700.79 2.0% 22,058.52 0.6% 45,651.27
33,575.51 1.0% 0.00 0.0% 33,575.51
794.18 0.0% 28,462.88 0.7% -25,668.48
2,998.93 0.1% 155.89 0.0% 2,843.04
0.00 0.0% 91,280.72 2.3% -91,280.72
0.00 0.0% 290.05 0.0% -280.05
82,369.38 2.4% 0.00 0.0% 82,369.39
50,845.92 1.5% 0,00 0.0% 50,845.92
8,827.07 0.3% 0,00 0.0% B,827.07
21,948.50 0.7% 0,00 0.0% 21,948.50
24,930.47 0.7% 0.00 0.0% 24,930.47
17.700.00 0.5% 28,100.88 0.7% -11,400,68
20,761.14 0.8% 65,207.78 1.8% -44,536.64
428,754.84 12.7% 328,424.23 B.2% 100,330.61
3,771,869 0.1% 11,315.07 0.3% -7,543,38
24,430,94 0.7% 21,891.20 0.5% 2,548.74
0.00 0.0% 20,210.68 0.5% -20,210.68
18,600.48 0.8% 29,272.08 0.7% -10,671.60
6,349.20 0.2% 3,683.00 0.1% 2,686.20
4,250.00 0.1% 3,725.00 0.1% 525.00
57.411.31 1.7% 80,077.03 2.3% -32,665.72
8,112.62 0.2% 17,005.16 0.5% -9,8682,54
86,500.28 2.0% £6,375.98 1.7% 124,32
26,043.28 0.8% 29,805.07 0.7% -3,761.78
10,363.61 0.3% 29,344.10 0.7% -18,980.49
0.00 0.0% 22,817.14 0.6% -22,817.14
0.00 0.0% 39,171.39 1.0% -38,171.39
0,00 0.0% 9,724.64 0.2% -8,724.64
8,845.82 0.3% 5,271.50 0.1% 3,574.32
2,859,11 0.1% 0.00 0.0% 2,859.11
14,295.72 0.4% 0.00 0.0% 14,295.72
2,858.61 0.1% 0.00 0.0% 2,858 61
3,573.08 0.1% 0.00 0,0% 3,573.05
143,452.10 4.3% 220,504.98 5.5% -77.,052.88
25,569.78 0.8% 49,350,05 1.2% -23,780.27
1,180.95 0.0% 2,320,00 0.1% -1,129.05
72,462.59 2.2% 75,545,458 1.9% -3,082.86
2,545.60 0.1% 1,5660,00 0.0% 985.60
100,120.38 3.0% ©1,560.22 2.3% 8,560.16
8,400.27 0.2% 61,316.87 1.5% -54,807.80
9,833.00 0.3% 0.00 0.0% 9,833.08
47,495.35 1.4% 48,230.82 1.2% -1,735.47
0.00 0.0% 35,368.65 0.9% -35,368.65
46,586.08 1.4% 911,07 0.0% 45,674.99

Page 1 0f 2



3:28 PM
03/21125
Accrual Basis

Income

4306100

* Loading and Un - Anderson
4306300 -
4308400 -
4306500 -
4306600 -
4306700 -
4306800 -
4306900 -
4307200 -
4307300 -

Loading and Un - Kuehne&Nagel
Loading and Un - Splisthoff
Loading and Un - DSV Air & Sea
Loading and Un - 5QC Matals
Loading and Un - Gunvor

Loading and Un - The Delong Co.
Loading and Un - GT Commadities
Loading and Un - Hartree Prinrs
Loading and Un - Rio Tinto

Total 4300000 - Loading and Unloading
4400000 - Rental

4400200 -
4400300 -
4400500 -
4400600 -
4402400 -
4402600 -
4403100 -
4403300 -
4403400 -
4403500 -
4403800 -
4405000 -

Rental - DeL.ong, Fred

Rental - Novells

Rental - General Svces Admin
Rental - Lehigh (Heldelberg)
Rental - Vinegar Hill, LLC
Rental - Nutrien Ag

Rental - H.Lee White Museum
Rental - Fitzgibbons site
Rental - Shark-Attach Office
Rental - WT Terminal Oswego LLC
Rental - Shop Units (Marina)
Rental - Miscellaneous

Total 4400000 - Rental
4500000 - Misc Income

4500200 -

4501300

Misc Income - Novelis

+ Mise Income - Demurrage reimbur
4502000 -
4504900 -
4505000 -
4505400 -
4505800 -

Misc Income - Labor

Misc Income - Metered Water
Misc Income - Other

Misc Income - Security East
Misc Income - BIDCO

Total 4500000 - Misc Income
4800000 - Stevedoring

4801200
4601800

4801900 -
4802400 -
4802500 -

4802600
4802700

4802800 -

4603100

4805000 -

4606100

- Stevedoring - New Eng Steamship
- Stevedoring - Marubeni

Stevedoring - Glencore
Stevedoring - Goldman Sachs
Stevedoring - IXM

- Stevedoring - McKeil Marine
+ Stevedoring - Mercuria

Stevedoring - Mitsubishi

+ Stevedoring - Hartree Partners

Stevedoring - Miscellaneous

+ Stevedoring - Gunvor

Total 4600000 - Stevedoring
4750000 - Profit Share
4800000 - Marina Income
4850000 - RV Park

Total Income

Port of Oswego Authority

YTD Sales Report

April 2024 through February 2025

Apr'24 - Feb 25 % Apr'23 - Feb 24 %a § Change
0,00 0.0% B5,472.39 21% -85,472.39
0.00 0.0% 6,765,00 0.2% -6,765.00
0.00 0.0% 15,887.53 0.4% -15,987.53
0.00 0.0% 12,164.47 0.3% -12,164,47
15.00 0.0% 0.00 0.0% 15,00
137,628.87 4.1% 0.00 0.0% 137,628,87
21,942.84 0.7% 0.00 0.0% 2184284
1,845,890 0.1% 0.00 0.0% 1,945,890
10,804,89 0.3% 0.00 0.0% 10,804 89
6,825.00 0.2% Q.00 0.0% 6,825.00
481,375,37 14,8% 487,552.52 12.2% 3,822.85
4,125.00 01% 4,125.00 0.1% 0.00
23,911.47 0.7% 2382315 0.6% 288.32
107,789.56 3.2% 97,6849.83 2.4% 10,138.73
64,411.38 1.9% B84,438.36 1.6% -26.98
954.91 0.0% 14,762.33 0.4% -13,807 .42
B2,214.99 2.4% 82,250.34 21% -35.35
3,300.00 0.1% 3,300.00 0.1% 0.00
300,000.00 B.9% 177,000.00 4.4% 123,000.00
4,675.00 0.1% 4,675,00 0.1% 0.00
B7,598.52 2.0% 67,588,52 1.7% 0.00
700.00 0.0% 1,100.00 0.0% 400,00
3,300,00 0.1% 1,100.00 0.0% 2,200.00
662,860.83 19.7% 541,622.53 13.5% 121,358.30
19,820.00 0.6% 5.840.00 0.1% 14,080.00
-2,085.00 -0.1% 1,050.00 0.0% -3,135.00
121,368.07 3.6% 143,548.05 3.6% -22,177.98
367.29 0.0% 280.71 0.0% B6.58
72,968.84 2.2% 91,198.54 2.3% -18,229.70
55,846.32 1.7% 61,398.87 1.5% -5,562.55
.00 0.0% 1,890.00 0.0% -1,880,00
26B,385.52 8.0% 305,204.17 7.6% -35,818,685
0.00 0.0% 15,000.00 0.4% -15,000.00
2B82,797.34 7.8% 261,935.49 6.6% 861,85
97,113.50 2.9% 258,283.26 6.5% -161,169.78
0.00 0.0% 203,712.68 5.1% -203,712.88
0,00 0.0% 345,380.83 B.6% -345,380.93
6,991.25 0.2% 5,525.00 0.1% 1,466,25
o.00 0.0% 90,949.84 23% -90,949.84
133,859.92 4.0% 0.00 0.0% 133,958,92
26,786,93 0.8% 0.00 0.0% 26,786.93
33,481.76 1.0% 4,742.89 0.1% 28,738.87
28,791.61 0.8% 0.00 0.0% 26,791.61
587,922,314 17.5% 1,185,530.09 29.7% -587,607.78
0.00 0.0% 85,911.12 2.1% -B5,811.,12
723,488.80 21.5% 752,578.12 18.8% -28,089.32
3,360.00 0.1% 0.00 0.0% 3,360.00
3,367,131.08 100.0% 3,897,404.77 100.0% -830,273.69

Page 2 of 2



Exhibit D



NY Power
Authority

NEW YORK
i?f??n%mm
ENERGY SERVICES PROGRAM
NEW YORK ENERGY MANAGER AND

UTILITY BILL INTEGRATION SERVICES AGREEMENT

This NY Energy Manager and Utility Bill Integration Services Agreement (this “Agreement”),
dated , is entered into by and between POWER AUTHORITY OF THE STATE OF
NEW YORK, a corporate municipal instrumentality of the State of New York with offices located at 123
Main Street, White Plains, New York 10601 (“Authority™) and

, a with
offices located at (*Customer”).

WHEREAS, Public Authorities Law §1005(17) permits the Authority, as deemed feasible
and advisable by the Trustees, to finance and design, develop, construct, implement, provide and
administer energy-related projects, programs and services for any public entity and certain other specified
entities; and the Trustees have authorized the Authority’s Energy Services Program (“ESP”) to include,
among other things, energy efficiency projects and services; and

WHEREAS, as part of its ESP offerings, the Authority has established a program under which it
provides utility bill integration (“UBI”) services to collect and process utility electronic billing data from
entities such as electric, natural gas, propane, water, and similar utilities and upload to the New York
Energy Manager (“NY Energy Manager”) platform for access by Customer (“UBI Services Program”);
and

WHEREAS, Public Authorities Law §1005(17) permits Customer, a public entity, to enter into
an energy services contract with the Authority for such energy-related projects, programs and
services as authorized by Public Authorities Law, including services provided under the UBI Services
Program; and Customer desires to engage the Authority to provide such services under its UBI
Services Program and enter into this Agreement as more particularly set forth herein; and

WHEREAS, the Authority established BuildSmart 2025 as an extension of BuildSmart NY to
support achieving the goals of the New York State Climate Leadership and Community Protection Act
(CLCPA) through its New York Energy Manager and UBI Services Program.

NOW, THEREFORE, Authority and Customer (sometimes referred to herein collectively as
the “Parties” and individually as a “Party™), in consideration of the mutual covenants and conditions
contained herein and in these recitals, hereby agree as follows:

DESCRIPTION OF SERVICES

The Authority will provide the following services (the “Services”) through Authority employees and/or
an entity engaged by the Authority, at its discretion, through its procurement policies, procedures
and guidelines to perform all or a part of the Services ("Service Provider"):

. NY Energy Manager Platform Access
The NY Energy Manager platform is web-based browser that allows the Customer to view their
energy data and provides analytic tools to identify and capture discrete energy and cost savings

Page 1
BuildSmart NY 09/2021



%

opportunities across the Customer’s portfolio of facilities. Key functions of the NY Energy
Manager platform include:

1.4.

L.5.

. Access to Customer’s electronic utility data;
. Data visualization through analytics, graphs, and charts;
. Trackers to identify energy savings resulting from capital and/or operational projects

implemented by Customer.

One hour of initial Customer onboarding and training provided by NY Energy Manager staff
conducted via a video conferencing platform.

Technical and customer support related to the NY Energy Manager Platform will be provided by
Authority staff and/or its Service Provider. Support will be available Monday to Friday, 9:00 am
to 5:00 pm Eastern Time via phone and/or email during the term of this Agreement.

Utility Bill Integration

2.1.

2

2.3:

24.

UBI Services automates the collection, standardization, and delivery of the Customer’s electronic
utility account data directly into the NY Energy Manager platform from entities such as electric,
gas, water, waste, and similar utilities and other data on the behalf of the Customer. UBI Services
include the following:
2.1.1.0ne-time hierarchy analysis and set-up of each utility account ingested and associated
facilities.
2.1.2.Access to the Authority’s third-party UBI service provider platform to enroll utility
accounts,
2.1.3.Electronic link of utility accounts and ingestion of up to one (1) year of historical utility
data from Effective Date, as available.
2.1.4.Monthly ingestion of updated electronic utility data (after historical ingestion). Available
data will be displayed via the NY Energy Manager platform.
2.1.5.A summary of the Customer’s energy use (“Energy Snapshot”) using available data . The
Energy Snapshot will be delivered by email to the Customer monthly. The Energy
Snapshot will include:

i. Energy consumption, cost, and peak load (as available) for previous month for each
linked aceount
ii. Total sum of energy consumption and cost for all linked accounts,
iii. Month-over-month and year-over-year comparison of energy use.
iv. If gross square footage is provided and peak load is available, respective utility use
intensity and load factor.

Both parties acknowledge that Authority’s ability to provide the Services is predicated on the
Customer’s utility having a website with bill data and electronic access to that account that is
accessible using normal web traversal methods. Authority shall not be obligated to provide data
for any Customer that does not have electronic access to such a website, or to provide data elements
for a given utility if that data is not available on the utility’s website.

The parties understand and agree that utilities may periodically make changes to their billing
systems and websites. If any utility makes such a change that impacts Authority’s or its Service
Provider’s ability to access and provide data to Customer, Authority will notify Customer of the
nature of such change, the impact it will have on the ability to provide data from that utility and
the steps that Authority is taking to address the situation.

If a utility charges a transaction fee in order to access the required data, then the Authority will
promptly notify Customer of such fee and will not obligate Authority or its Service Provider to
pay such fee without Customer’s prior written approval and agreement to reimburse the Authority
such fee, if applicable.

Page 2
BuildSmart NY 09/2021



CUSTOMER REPRESENTATIONS, WARRANTIES AND OBLIGATIONS

Customer is authorized to provide the data to the Authority and/or its Service Provider and Authority
and/or its Service Provider is authorized to collect data on behalf of the Customer for analytical,
trending, business intelligence, or other appropriate services, and for other purposes permitted by law.

Customer hereby authorizes the Authority and its Service Provider to use its credentials to access its
utility account information and use such information in connection with its transaction with the
Authority and to utilize the information for any purpose permitted by law.

Customer is responsible for securely managing access credentials (e.g. username and password) for the
Services and shall contact the Authority and/or the Authority’s Service Provider if Customer becomes
aware of any unauthorized access to its accounts or unauthorized disclosure of said access credentials.
Customer shall cooperate with Authority and/or its Service Provider as necessary to comply with those
processes or procedures required by law or by the utilities from which Authority and/or its Service
Provider will obtain data in order to ensure that the Authority and/or its Service Provider is authorized
to collect, process and transmit the data to provide the Services as set forth in this Agreement.

Customer shall coordinate with the Authority to ensure data connections are maintained to
minimize gaps in data collection, provide staff members to attend Customer onboarding training,
provide utility account access, and all necessary authorization for the Authority and its Service Provider
and facilitate the resolution of any account access issues between the Authority’s Service Provider and
the Customer.

In addition to the obligations set forth herein, Customer shall provide Authority and/or its Service
Providers with such assistance as may be required to perform the Services. This may include, but is
not limited to, providing access to the Customer's facility(ies), information such as historical utility
data, maintenance logs, existing feasibility studies, reports, equipment drawings or any other
information or services reasonably requested by Authority and/or Service Providers.

COMPENSATION AND PAYMENT

The “Service Subscription Fee” reimburses the Authority for the Services provided by Authority under
this Agreement. The Service Subscription Fee is set forth in Attachment 1, attached.

TERM AND TERMINATION

1.

This Agreement shall become effective on the date first written above (the “Effective Date”) and
terminate on March 31, 2026,

Either party may terminate this Agreement by giving written notice to the other party upon a material
breach by the other party of any of its representations, warranties or obligations under this Agreement
that remains uncured for a period of thirty (30) days after receipt of written notice of such breach from
the non-defaulting party. Authority may terminate this Agreement immediately in the event Customer
has violated any law applicable to the Services or in the event any new legal or regulatory provisions
make the particular services not viable.

2.1. Upon any termination or expiration of this Agreement Customer shall promptly cease using the
Services.

Page 3
BuildSmart NY 09/2021



2.2, Customer acknowledges and agrees that Authority and/or its Service Provider may
immediately deactivate or delete Customer’s account and all related information and files in
Customer’s account and/or prohibit any further access to all files and the Services by Customer.

2.3. Customer agrees that neither Authority nor its Service Provider shall be liable to Customer or
any third party for any termination of Customer’s access to the Services.

WARRANTIES, DAMAGES, LIABILITY

EXCEPT AS EXPRESSLY SET FORTH HEREIN, AUTHORITY MAKES NO REPRESENTATIONS
OR WARRANTIES, AND DISCLAIMS ALL OTHER WARRANTIES, WHETHER EXPRESS,
IMPLIED, STATUTORY OR OTHERWISE, MADE WITH RESPECT TO THE SUBJECT MATTER
OF THIS AGREEMENT, INCLUDING WITHOUT LIMITATION, ANY IMPLIED WARRANTY OF
MERCHANTABILITY, ERROR-FREE USE, OR FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE.

To the fullest extent permitted by law, Authority shall not be liable to Customer, for any indirect, special,
incidental, or consequential damages of any kind (including without limitation, any loss of property or
equipment, loss of profits or revenue, loss of use of equipment or power systems, cost of capital, cost of
purchased or replacement power or temporary equipment, including additional expenses incurred in using
existing facilities) related to or arising in connection with this Agreement, regardless of the form of action
(whether in contract, tort or otherwise), even if Authority has been advised of the possibility of such
damages.

In no event shall Authority’s total liability (whether in contract, tort or otherwise) for all claims relating to
the Services exceed $1,000.

INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY RIGHTS

1. Neither Party shall acquire, directly or by implication, any ownership of any Intellectual Property
Rights of the other Party. “Intellectual Property Rights” means any and all intellectual property rights,
including, but not limited to rights in any and all of the following: (i) technical information and know-
how; (i1) discoveries, improvements, enhancements, upgrades, inventions, (whether or not patentable);
(iil) patents, patent applications, patent disclosures, and any other patentable subject matter; (iv)
copyrights, applications to register copyrights, works of authorship and any other copyrightable works;
(v) trademarks, trade names, trade dresses, brand names, logos and similar marks; (vi) any sketches,
drawings, outlines, drafts; (vii) computer software (including source code, executable code, databases,
data and related documentation); (viii) trade secrets and know-how; and (ix) all improvements or
modifications to any of the foregoing.

2. Authority reserves all rights not expressly granted to Customer in this Agreement. Subject to the rights
granted to Customer, Authority and/or its Service Provider owns and retains all right, title, and interest
in and to the following: (a) the Services, the related website and code, and all other software, hardware,
technology, documentation, and information provided by Authority and/or its Service Provider in
connection with the Services; (b) all aggregated or anonymized information generated from Customer’s
Data; (c) all ideas, know-how, and techniques that may be developed, conceived, or invented by
Authority and/or its Service Provider during its performance under this Agreement; (d) any other
information created by or originating from the Services; and (e) all worldwide patent, copyright, trade
secret, trademark and other Intellectual Property Rights in and to the property described in (a), (b), (¢)
and (d) above.

Page 4
BuildSmart NY 09/2021]



ELECTRONIC DATA

L,

Definitions:

1.1. “Data™ refers to data, metadata, data elements, identifiers, data models, data structures,
databases, information, files, documents, materials, content, libraries, code, scripts, algorithms,
and any items similar to any of the foregoing, that are collected by the Authority in connection
with its NY Energy Manager program.

1.2, “Processed Data” means any data, information, work product, report, model or document
produced, created or prepared at any time by the Authority that is a derivative work,
compilation, combination, analysis, interpretation, repackaging, or reformatting of the Data.

The Customer hereby grants to the Authority a perpetual, non-exclusive, ievocable, royalty-free,
transferable, sublicensable license to use the Data for any and all purposes, including without limitation,
the purpose of: (i) providing the Services, including a right to access, copy, store, record, reproduce,
backup, transmit, maintain, display and use or process Data to the extent necessary in conducting the
NY Energy Manager program; (ii) improving the overall NY Energy Manager program and program
offerings; (iii) quality control and troubleshooting the NY Energy Manager program; (iv) debug
software problems and provide technical support to Customer; (v) creating Processed Data; and (vi)
any purpose of the Authority.

The Authority may share the Data with third parties in the following manner: (i) Processed Data, as
well as aggregated or anonymized Data, may be shared with third party vendors associated with the
NY Energy Manager program that offer energy-related services; and (ii) Processed Data, as well as
Data (whether or not aggregated or anonymized) may be shared with energy or utility industry
organizations, educational and/or research institutions or laboratories, other distribution utilities, and
similar organizations, for any purpose, including without limitation, to conduct energy-related studies,
to analyze new services, to evaluate traffic on the grid, etc.

The Authority shall be the sole owner of all right, title and interest in and to the Processed Data, and
reserves all rights, title and interest in and to the Processed Data, including all related intellectual
property rights. The Customer shall not (i) permit any third party to access the Processed Data except
as permitted herein; (ii) create derivative works based on the Processed Data; (iii) copy, frame or mirror
any part or content of the Processed Data, other than copying or framing on the Customer's own
intranets or otherwise for its own internal business purposes; (iv) reverse engineer the Processed Data;
or (v) access the Processed Data in order to (a) build a competitive product or service, or (b) copy any
features, functions or graphics of the Processed Data.

The Authority will take and implement appropriate technical and organizational measures in
accordance with the National Institutes of Standards and Technology Cyber Security Framework to
protect the Data against accidental or unlawful destruction or accidental loss or alteration, or
unauthorized disclosure or access, or other unauthorized processing (the “Security Measures™). The
Authority may update or modify the Security Measures from time to time provided that such updates
and modifications do not result in the degradation of the overall security of the Services.

MISCELLANEOUS

L.

Entire Agreement. This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between Authority and Customer
concerning the Services, and supersedes all prior negotiations, representations, contracts and
agreements concerning the Services. This Agreement may be amended only in writing signed by an
authorized officer or designee of Authority and Customer.

Page 5
BuildSmart NY 09/2021



2. Force Majeure. Authority shall not be responsible for delays or failures in performance resulting from
occurrences beyond its reasonable control including, but not limited to, acts of God, strikes, walkouts,
acts of war, epidemic, or any law, regulation, or action of any court or governmental authority, fire,
malfunctions in communication lines or computer hardware, power failures, or other events caused by
those not party to this Agreement.

3. Notices. All notices permitted or required hereunder shall be in writing and transmitted either: (i) via
certified or registered United States mail, return receipt requested; (ii) by personal delivery; (iii) by
expedited delivery service; or (iv) by e-mail, with a copy sent via U.S. Mail.

Such notices shall identify the Agreement to which it relates, and be addressed as follows or to such
different addresses as the Parties may from time-to-time designate in accordance herewith:

To Authority: To Customer:
NEW YORK POWER AUTHORITY
NEW YORK ENERGY MANAGER

Name: Name:
Title: Title:
Address: 123 Main Street Address:

White Plains, NY 10601

E-Mail Address: Email Address:

Any such notice shall be deemed to have been given either at the time of personal delivery or, In
the case of expedited delivery service or certified or registered United States mail, as of the date of
first attempted delivery at the address and in the manner provided herein, or in the case of email,
upon receipt. The Parties may, from time:to time, specify any new or different address in the
United States as their address for purpose of receiving notice under this Agreement by giving 15
days written notice to the other Party sent in accordance herewith. The Parties agree to mutually
designate individuals as their respective representatives for the purposes of receiving notices under
this Agreement.

4. No Waiver. The failure of any Party to insist upon strict adherence to any term of this Agreement on
any occasion shall not be considered a waiver nor deprive that Party of the right thereafier to insist upon
strict adherence to that term or any other term of this Agreement.

5. Assignment. This Agreement may not be assigned, transferred, or conveyed by the Customer without
the prior written consent of the Authority. Any attempted assignment, transfer or conveyance without
such consent shall be entirely void ab initio and have no force or effect.

6. Governing Law: Venue. This Agreement and any and all disputes arising in connection herewith shall
be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of New York without giving
effect to any choice or conflict of laws provision or rule that would cause the application of the laws of
any jurisdiction other than New York., Any action at law, or in equity, for the enforcement of this
Agreement or any dispute arising in connection herewith shall be instituted only in a court of competent
Jjurisdiction located in the County of Albany, State of New York.

7. No Third Party Beneficiaries. Nothing contained in this Agreement shall create a contractual
relationship with, or give any claim or right of action in favor of, any third party against Authority.

Page 6

BuildSmart NY 09/2021




8. Severability. The invalidity or unenforceability of any provisions of this Agreement shall not affect
the validity or enforceability of any other provisions of this Agreement, and such other provisions shall
remain in full force and effect.

9. Headings. The section headings contained in this Agreement are for reference purposes only and shall
not affect the meaning or interpretation of this Agreement.

10. Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in counterparts via inked signature or electronic mark,
each of which shall be deemed an original, but all of which together shall constitute one and the same
instrument. The fully executed Agreement may be delivered using pdf or similar file type transmitted
via electronic mail, cloud based server, e-signature technology or other similar electronic means.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed this Agreement as of the effective
date first written above,

POWER AUTHORITY OF THE STATE OF
NEW YORK

Page 7
BuildSmart NY 09/2021



Exhibit E



STATE OF NEW YORK

Authorities Budget Office
P.O. Box 2076

Albany, NY 12220-0078
WWW.ABO.NY.GOV

e-mall address: Local: 518-474-1932
info@abo.ny.gov Toll Free: 800-560-1770

January 27, 2025

Thomas Schneider
Interim Executive Director
Port of Oswego Authority
1 East 2™ Street
Oswego, New York 13126

Dear Thomas Schneider:

The Authorities Budget Office (ABO) is authorized to assist public authorities improve management practices
and the procedures by which their activities and financial practices are disclosed to the public. Pursuant to
Section 2800 of Public Authorities Law, state and local authorities are to make documents pertaining to their
mission, current activities, annual financial reports, budgets, and independent audit reports accessible to the
public on the authority's official or shared website. To assist state and local authorities meet their disclosure and
reporting obligations, the ABO has issued Policy Guidance No. 22-01: “Posting and Maintaining Reports on
Public Authority Websites". This guidance provides a checklist of policies, reports, and other information that the
Authority should maintain online in accordance with the Public Authorities Reform Act of 2009 and other
provisions of law.

Between November 27, 2024 and November 29, 2024, we reviewed the Port of Oswego Authority’s (Authority)
website. Our review was limited to verifying that the required information is posted on the Authority's website
and did not address the substance of these documents. Our review focused on current information and required
data for the fiscal year ending March 31, 2024. We have concluded the Authority needs to make additional
required information available on its website. Please review the attached findings and take the appropriate action
so that all information required under Section 2800 of Public Authorities Law is available online and easily
accessible to the public.

Please provide us with a written confirmation that you have fully addressed these concerns by March 10, 2025.
You may view Policy Guidance No. 22-01 at www.abo.ny.gov. Please contact us if you have any additional
questions.

Sincerely,

Ay

Ann Maloney
Acting Director

Enclosure

cc: Francis Enwright, Chair, Port of Oswego Authority



Review of Port of Oswego Authority’s Website

Information To Be Posted on Public Authority’s Website

Posted on Website

and major organizational units

(Yes/No)
Mission Statement Yes
Enabling Statute Yes
By-laws Yes
Code of Ethics Yes
Conflict of Interest Policy No
Whistleblower Policy Yes
Organization Chart — including, at a minimum, the Authority’s executive structure Yes

Report on Operations and Accomplishments — including a description of the
Authority's operations, completed and active projects, as well as any material
changes in Authority operations and programs

Yes, but not 2023

Subsidiaries, Affiliates, and Major Authority Units and required subsidiary reports
per statute

N/A

List of Board Members, including appointing entity, appointment dates, and term

Yes, but appointment
dates and terms for each
member not included

Each Authority board member’s current employment and professional background

Yes

List of Committees and Committee Members

Yes

Executive Management Team - including professional background and
qualifications

Yes, but background and
qualifications not

included
Authority Performance Measures Yes, should be reviewed
annually
Annual Performance Evaluation indicating status of Performance Measures Yes

Authority Schedule of Debt

Yes, included in audit but
should be separate

Management's Assessment of the Authority's Internal Control Structure and

of the grant, date awarded, and amount awarded

Procedures - including a description of operating and financial risks and any No
policies to mitigate risk

Board meeting schedule Yes
Board meeting notice Yes
Board agendas Yes
Board packets No
Board meeting minutes Yes
Board meeting webcasting and video recordings Yes
Board Resolutions No
Committee meeting schedule No
Committee meeting notice No
Committee meeting agendas No
Committee meeting packets No
Committee meeting minutes No, only one meeting

posted for 2024

Committee meeting webcasting and video recordings No
Annual Budget Report and details of 4-year financial plan Yes
Annual Independent Certified Financial Audit Yes
Independent Auditor's Report on Internal Controls over Financial Reporting Yes
Independent audit management latter Yes
List of grants provided - including grant recipient's name and address, the purpose N/A




List of loans provided - including borrower's name and address, loan purpose, date
awarded, amount issued, term of the loan, repayment status, principal repaid and
amount outstanding as of the end of the fiscal year

N/A

List of bonds issued - including bond recipient's name, amount of bonds issued, N/A
purpose of bonds, and current amount outstanding as of the end of the fiscal year

Property Acquisition Policies No
Property Disposition Policies No
List of Real Property owned by the Authority Yes
Personal Property Transactions Yes

Real Property Transactions

No, property report only
includes personal

property transactions

Policies for the procurement of all goods and services Yes

Annual Procurement Report No
Authority's Procurement Officer Yes
Investment Policies Yes

Annual Investment Report - including the investment audit results and Yes
management letter, record of investment income, list of fees paid for investment

services, and explanation of any amendments to the Investment Policy

Fee Schedules (if applicable) of any service or administrative fees charged No

Current Year Official Statements or similar bond documents N/A

*Review conducted by the Authorities Budget Office between November 27, 2024 and November 29, 2024




